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FSNL Private Limited (formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)

CIN: U27102CT1979FTCO05468
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes As at As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023

(Restated) (Restated)

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment B 791570 8,116.96 742288
Right-of-use asset 8 457.25 472,61 469.05
Capltal work-in-progress 6 - - 8.18
Other intanglble assets 7 2.00 9.64 20.44
Financial assets:

i. Other financial assets 9 26.62 2,206.54 7,666.19
Deferred tax assets (net) 10 1.362.59 972.50 675.31
Non-current tax assets (net) 11 1,301.90 617.56 1,599.563
Other non-current assets 12 9,94 5.95 631
Total non-current assets (A) 11,076.00 12.401.76 17,867.89
Current assets
Inventories 13 617.66 537.68 514.67
Financial assets:

i, Trade receivables 14 10,263.65 156,965.33 8,747.38

ii, Cash and cash equivalents 15 5,885.03 1,553.62 2,722.00

jii. Bank balances other than (ji.) above 16 10,428.55 8,126.98 7.992.67

iv. Other financial assets 9 778.01 624.43 1,082.24
Contract assets 17 4,346.67 4,268.05 422091
Other current assets 12 1,237.60 756,39 808.52
Current assets excluding assets classified as held for sale and 33.457.07 31,831.48 26,088.39
assets retired from active use
Assets classified as held for sale 18 253.30 283.25 232.90
Assets retired from active use 13,85 17.39 3214
Total current assets (B) 33,724.22 3z2,132.12 26,353.43
Total assets (A+B) 44,800.22 44,533.88 44,221.32
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Eauitv
Equity share capital 19 32,200.00 3,200.00 3,200.00
Other equity 20 28.558.56 22,595.54 18,602.93 |
Total equity {(A) 31,758.56 25,795.54 21,802.93
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Lease liabilities 8 o122 303.05 310.04
Provisions 22 2,531.72 7,613.34 7,833.23
Total nen-current liabilities(B) 2,832.94 7,916.39 8,143.27
Current labilities
Financial liabilities

i. Lease liabilities 8 1.83 7.00 246.27

li. Trade payables 23

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 180.40 427.76 182.07
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 2,539.52 4,346,18 3,634.05
and small enterprises

iil, Other financial labilities 21 2,21251 2.337.20 2,052.41

| Pravisions 22 3,523.55 1,690.77 6,680.50
Other current liabilities 24 1,742.37 1,879.15 1,474.87
Total current liabilities excluding liabilities relating to assets 10,207.18 10,788.06 14,270.17
held for sale

Liahilities relating to assets classified as held for sale 18 1.54 33.89 4.95
Total current liabilities (C) 10,208.72 10,821.95 14,275.12
Total liabilities (B+C) 13,041.66 18,738.34 22,418.39
Tatal equity and liabilitles (A+B+C) 44,800.22 44,533.88 44,221.32
summary of Material Accounting Policies 1 To 50 »

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For V.RAWAL & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reglstration No: 011303N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
FSNL Private Limited (formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)
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Toshlhiro Fujiwara Yukihiro MomeSsa
Place: Bhilai Chairman and Non- Executive Director Executive Director

Date: DIN: 10903855 DIN: 10909033
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FSNL Private Limited (formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)

CIN: U27102CT1979FTC005468
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes| For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Restated)
Income:
Revenue from operations 25 45,895.18 43,461.01
Other income 26 1,778.74 3,310.76
Total income (I) 47,673.92 46,771.77
Expenses:
Operational Expenses 27 6,626.03 6,307.70
Employee benefits expense 28 9,274.27 11,201.51
Finance costs 29 29.59 30.93
Depreciation and amortization expense 30 1,716.74 1,698.41
Other expenses 31 2157152 1B8.721.52
Total expenses (II) 39,218.15 37,960.07
Profit before tax (III =1 - IT) 8,455.77 8,811.70
Income tax expense 32
- Current tax 2,549.46 2,51258
- Deferred tax (390.09) (297.19)
Total tax expense (IV) 2,1569.37 2,215.39
Profit After Tax for the year (V = III - IV) 6,296.40 6,596.31
Other comprehensive income / (loss)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Remeasurement loss on defined benefit plans (445.51) (58.40)
Income tax relating to above item 112.13 14.70
Total other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (VI) (333.38) (43.70)
Total comprehensive income for the year (VII = V + VI) 5,963.02 6,552.61
Earnings per equity share (nominal value per share Rs. 10)
(i) Basic (INR) 33 19.68 20.61
(i) Diluted (INR) 33 19.68 20.61
Summary of Material Accounting Policies 1To 50

The accompanying notes farm an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For V.RAWAL & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 011303N

Mbaﬁr grawal

CA Payal Mittal “{
Partner

Membership No: 474037
UDIN :

25474037BOEGP]

Place: Bhilai

10 JUL 295

DIN: 10903855

Company Secretary
Membership No: A40900

B 15 1.

Toshihiro Fujiwara
Chairman and Non- Executive Director

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
FSNL Private Limited (formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)

Al

Sumit Kumar Roy
AGM (F&A) & CFO

UL 3%,

Yukihiro Moniose
Executive Director
DIN: 10909033
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FSNL Private Limited (formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)

CIN: U27102CT1979FTCO05468

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Equity share capital (refer note 19)

| Particulars Number of shares Amount

As at 01 April 2023 2,20,00,000 3,200.00
Changes In equity share capital during the year - -
As at 31 March 2024 3,20,00,000 3,200.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year . .
As at 31 March 2025 3,20,00,000 3,200.00
Other equity (refer note 20)

Particulars Retained earnings General Reserve Total other equity
Balance as at 01 April 2023 * (796.58) 19,399.51 1B,602.93
Profit for the year ended 31 March 2024 6,596.31 - 6.596.31
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (43.70) - (43.70)
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 6,552.61 . 6,552.61
a2N3A

Dividends paid (2,560.00) - (2,560.00)
Transfer to general reserve (3,080.00) 3,080.00 +
Balance as at 31 March 2024 116.03 22,479.51 22,595.54
Profit for the year ended 31 March 2025 6,296.40 - 6,296.40
Qther comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (333.38) - (333.38)
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 5,963.02 . 5,963.02
2025

Transfer to general reserve (5,940.00) 5,940.00 -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 139.05 28,419.51 28,558.56

* Restated downwards by 87.06 lakhs, towards reinstated in leases and capital reserve referred to in note 41.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For V.RAWAL & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 011303N

CA Payal Mittal  / %»
Partner q{ﬁ
Membership No: 474

UDIN :

25474037B0EQPI5339

Place: Bhilal
Date:

10 JUL 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
FSNL Private Limited (formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)

Mﬁi;ga\ﬁ Sumit Kumar Raoy

Company Secretary AGM (F&A) & CFO
Membership No: A40800

YA L2

Toshihiro Fujiwara Yukihiro Momose
Chairman and Non- Executive Director Executive Director
CIN: 10803855 DIN: 10909033
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FSNL Private Limited (formerly known as Ferra Scrap Nigam Limitad)
CIN: U27102CT1979FTCOD5468

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

(Restated)

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit befare income tax 8,455.77 8,811.70
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expense 1,716.74 1,698.41
Liabilities/provisions no longer required written back (771.04) (2,336.21)
Interest on fixed deposit (B92.49) (890.83)
Profit on sale of fixed assets (R.QU}I (12.86)
Unwinding of discount on security deposits (0.10} (0.09)
Interest expense on lease liabilitles 28.04 i 3093
Other finance cest 165 =
Provision for doubtful debt 1,498.93 356.00
Provision for assets awaiting for disposal 58.66 65.33
Other provision 5.39 2.46
Operating profit before working capital charges 10,083.55 7,724.84
Maovements in working capital:
(Increase)/Decrease In trade receivables 4,201.75 (7,573.95)
(Increase)/Decrease in contract assets {78.62) (47.14)
(Increase)/Decrease In inventories 20.12 (23.01)
(Increase)/Decrease in other financlal assets (386.51) §,304.62
(Increase)/Decrease in other assets {486.20) 53.48
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables (2,054.02) 057.83
Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions (2,816.59) (2,919.56)
Increase/ (Decrease) in other financial liabilities (124.69) 284.80
Increase/ (Decrease) In othar liabilities (262.13) 533.21
Cash generated from/(used in) operations B8,106.66 4,£95.02
Income taxes paid (net of rafunds) (3.233.81) (1,530.60)
Cash generated from operations (A) 4,872.85 2,764.42
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant & equipment Including ROU asset (1,508.72) (2.465.16)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets - =
Investment in fixed deposits 111.38 478.71
Interest received on fixed deposits B892.49 BOD.84
Net cash generated used in Investing activities (8) (504.85) (1,095.61)
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Payments of lease liabilities (principal) (7.00) (246.26)
Interest pald on lease liabilitiss (28.04) (20.93)
Dividend paid - (2,560.00)
Other finance cost (1.55; =
Net cash generated from/(used In) financing activities (C) (36.59) (2,837.19)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 4,331.41 (1,168.38)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,653.62 2,722.00
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5,885.03 1,553.62
Cash and cash equivalents as per above cumprise of the following (refer note 15)
Balances with banks
-in current accounts 5,885 03 1.553.62
-in foreign currency accourts - =
-deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months = -
-deposits with original maturity of more than 3 but less than 12 months
Total cash and bank balances at end of the year 5,885.03 1,663.62

Naotes :

1. Please refer note 41 for reconciliation en movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities.
2. The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in Indian Accounting Standard ('Ind AS) 7 Statement of Cash Flows as
notified under section 133 of the Companles Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
As per our report of even date attached

For V.RAWAL & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo: 011303N

CA Payal Mittal ishant Agrawal

Partner Cempany Secretary
Membership No: 474032~ Membership No: A40900
UDIN :

PlacBHff37B0%0P)

Date: Toshihiro Fujiwara

QA

Chairman and Non- Executive Director
DIN: 10963855

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
FSNL Private Limited (formerly knovsn as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)

/&u_)fﬂo_a

Sumit Kumar Roy
AGM (F&eA) & CFO

vz

Executive Director
DIN: 10909033
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 315t March 2025

1. Corporate information

FSNL Private Limited (formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited) ("FSNL" or the
"Company") was incorporated under the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 on March 28, 1979.
The registered office of the Company is situated at FSNL Bhawan, Equipment Chowk Central
Avenue, Bhilai, Dist. Durg, Chhattisgarh, India, 490001.

The Company undertakes the job of recovery and processing of scrap from slag and refuse
generated during iron and steel making at Steel Plants. It offers specialized services for Dig
and Haulage of Blast Furnaces & Steel Melting Shop slag at slag yards, processing of iron and
steel skulls, mill rejects & maintenance scrap as per customer's requirement. FSNL also offers
scalping of slabs, crushing and screening of LD slag to be used in sinter plant, blast furnace,
steel melting shop & rail ballast. It removes sludge & ash deposit from sludge compartments
& ash ponds. It also handle and neutralize Acid Sludge in open Hearth Muck Dump.

FSNL was a wholly owned subsidiary of MSTC Limited (MSTC), a Central Public Sector
Enterprise (CPSE) of the Government of India.

In compliance with the provisions of the Share Purchase Agreement dated 24 October 2024
executed among MSTC Limited, Konoike Transport Co., Ltd. and the Company, Konoike
Transport Co., Ltd. has purchased and acquired all of the Company's equity shares
(representing 100% of the total issued, subscribed and fully paid- up equity share capital of
the Company) from MSTC Limited, and MSTC Limited has sold and transferred all of the
shares to Konoike Transport Co., Ltd., on a spot delivery basis on 21st January 2025.

As a result, the Company has converted from Public Sector Undertaking to Private Limited
Company and consequently the name of the Company has changed to "FSNL Private Limited"
vide new certificate of incorporation obtained from the Registrar of Companies approved on
April 29, 2025.

2. Basis of Preparation
2,1 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, as
amended from time to time and other relevant provisions of the Act. These financial
statements are prepared on going concern basis.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2025 were
approved for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors on 10t

July, 2025.
2.2 Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on
accrual basis, except for the foilowing:
\ = certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) and
contingent consideration is measured at fair value
» assets held for sale — measured at fair value less cost to sell
* defined benefit plans - plan assets me akfai

Page | 5



Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 315t March 2025

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is the
Company’s functional currency. All financial information presented in (INR) has been
rounded to the nearest lakh (up to two decimals), except when indicated otherwise.

2.4 Current and non-current classification

The Company classifies its assets and liabilities as current/non-current in the balance sheet
as per the
requirements of Ind AS 1 and considering 12 months period as normal operating cycle.

3. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement
principles of Ind AS requires management of the Company to make estimates and judgements
that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent liabilities
as at the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses for
the periods presented.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised, and
future periods are affected.

The Company uses the following critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
in preparation of its financial statements:

3.1 Revenue Recognition

The Company exercises judgement for identification of performance obligations,
determination of transaction price, ascribing the transaction price to each distinct
performance obligation and in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied
at a point in time or over a period of time. These judgements have been explained in detail
under the revenue recognition note (Refer note 5.11).

3.2 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each
reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future
periods.

3.3 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured
using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in

= .—_h:\‘:\ " g . . .

/@?\“{»,ﬂ\assumptlons about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

&R w\ AN

g fivems
c.o

BHILAI

\ A

G "l . . .

} 3.4 Impairment of financial assets (other than at fair value)
."‘ /f'— —

srates, which have been
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 315t March 2025

explained in the note on financial assets, financial liabilities and equity instruments, under
impairment of financial assets (other than at fair value) (Refer note 5.8).

3.5 Deferred tax assets

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be
utilised. Accordingly, the Company exercises its judgement to reassess the carrying amount
of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period.

3.6 Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Company estimates the provisions that have present obligations as a result of past events
and it is probable that outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligations. These
provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are adjusted to reflect the
current best estimates. The Company uses significant judgements to assess contingent
liabilities. Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from
past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of
the amount cannot be made. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the
standalone financial statements.

3.7 Employee Benefits

The accounting of employee benefit plans in the nature of defined benefit requires the
Company to use assumptions. These assumptions have been explained under employee
benefits note (Refer ~ note 5.10).

4.  New standards, interpretations and amendments adopted by the Company Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the
year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS — 117 Insurance Contracts and
amendments to Ind AS 116 — Leases, relating to sale and leaseback transactions, applicable
to the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2024. The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements
and based on its evaluation has determined that it does not have any significant impact in its
financial statements.

5 Material accounting policies

A summary of the material accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial
statements are as given below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all
periods presented in the financial statements. It allows for an understanding as to how
material transactions, other events and conditions are reported. It also describes: (a)
judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that management makes in applying the
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the Financial
Statements; and (b) estimations, including assumptions about the future, that management

/Wkes in applying the policies.

—AN,

o - 'ﬂ(ey Accounting Estimates and Critical Judgements
w

-
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preparation of financial statements in accordance with I 98



Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 315 March 2025

make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the accounts and reported amounts
of income and expenses during the period.

Actual results may differ from these estimates. Continuous evaluation is done on the
estimation and judgements based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively. Critical accounting judgements and the key sources
of estimation or uncertainty in applying the Company’s accounting policies arise in relation
to assets, liabilities, income and expenses. All of these kev factors are reviewed on a
continuous basis.

5.2 Property, plant and equipment

An Ttem of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and its costs can be
measured reliably. This recognition principle is applied to the costs incurred initially to
acquire an item of property, plant and equipment and also to cost incurred subsequently to
add to, replace part of, or

service it. All other repair and maintenance costs, including regular service, are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss as incurred. When a replacement occurs, the carrying amount
of the replaced part is de-recognised.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
impairment

losses. Cost of acquisition or construction of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes net of trade
discounts, rebates and any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working
condition for its intended use Included in property, plant and equipment are locse plant and
tools which are stated at cost less amounts written off related to their expected useful lives

and estimated scrap value.

Spares having useful life of more than one year and having value of Rs. 25.00 Lakhs or more
in each case, are capitalised under the respective heads as and when available for use.

The gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of profit

and loss.
Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is valued at cost and includes equipment in transit and the cost of
fixed assets that are not ready for their intended use at the reporting date.

Asset Retired from Active use

ﬂ;;?n‘g;g 1

1E/F ‘When an asset is retired from active use, but not yet surveyed off, will be transferred to “Asset
) Retired from Active use” with residual value of 5% of the Cost of Asset and same will be
:ei:}éssiﬁed as “Current Assets”
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 315t March 2025

5.3 Assets held for sale

The Company classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their
carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale rather than through continuing
use and a sale consideration is highly probable.

Non-current assets comprising of assets and liabilities are classified as ‘held for sale’ when all
the following criteria are met: (i) decision has been made to sell, (ii) the assets are available
for immediate sale in its present condition, (iii) the assets are being actively marketed and
(iv) sale has been agreed or is expected to be concluded within 12 months of the Balance Sheet

date.

Subsequently, such non-current assets classified as ‘held for sale’ are measured at the lower
of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell, except for asset such as Deferred Tax
Asset, Assets arising from employee’s benefit, Financial Assets which are specifically exempt
from this requirement.

Assets classified as held for sale are presented separately from the other assets in the balance
sheet. The liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately from the other
liabilities in the balance sheet.

5.4 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets purchased are initially measured at cost. Subsequently, intangible assets
with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortization is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortization methods are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is de-recognised at disposal, or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Further, the management estimates that the intangible assets
have zero carrying cost at the end of its useful life i.e. zero residual value.

5.5 Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at the inception of a contract.
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses

whether:

- the contract involves the use of an identified asset
-the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
riod
the lease and
-the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset
£Fhe Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a corresponéi se liability for all lease
Mrl'angements in which it is a lessee, except for leases wi ;




Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 315t March 2025

(short-term leases) and leases for low value underlying assets. For these short-term and
leases for low value underlying assets, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
-Where lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the
end of the

lease term, right-of use assets and lease liabilities include those options when it is reasonably
certain that the option to extend the lease will be exercised/option to terminate the lease will
not be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date
of the lease less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted for any reassessment of lease
liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

Lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of future lease
payments. Lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates. Lease liabilities are re-
measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset if the Company
changes its assessment whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

5.6 Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on straight line method, considering residual
value of 5% of the cost of asset, over the useful lives of the assets, as specified in Schedule II
of the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of certain categories of assets. The estimated
useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any change in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The estimated useful lives are as mentioned below:

Asset Useful life
Excavators 1.2 to 5 Cum used for Hot Slag handling | 5 Years *
Dozer 7 Years *
Excavators 1.2 to 5 Cum Not used for Hot Slagl 7 Years *
handling

Cranes 15 Years *
Magnetic Separators 15 Years *
Solar Plants 10 Years *
Other plant and machinery 9.19 Years *

* The Company believes that the technically evaluated useful lives, different from Schedule I1
of the Companies Act, 2013, best represent the period over which these assets are expected to be
used.

Page | 10




Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 315t March 2025

in use.

Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-progress until construction and installation
are complete and the asset is ready for its intended use.

Depreciation on capital spares is provided over the useful life of the spare or remaining useful
life of the other asset, as re-assessed, whichever is lower.

Assets costing upto Rs. 4999/- are fully depreciated in the year in which they are put to use.

Software, which is not an integral part of related hardware, if treated as intangible assets and
amortised over a period of 6 years or its license period, whichever is less, without any residual
value.

5.7 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial
asset, other than deferred tax to determine whether there is any indication that the carrying
amount of those assets may not be recoverable through continuing use. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is reviewed in order to determine the extent of
impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent
from other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as and when the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined when no impairment loss have been recognised for the asset (or cash generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the

statement of profit and loss.

5.8 _Financial Instruments

5.8.1 Financial Assets:
a) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets, except for trade receivables, are recognised when the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. On initial recognition, a financial asset
\;s recognised at fair value.

‘;T ade receivables are initially recognised at transaction price as they do not contain a
a\_BHILAL/ i;mﬁcant financing component. This implies that ive interest rate for these

[y
4, &
 Private™ /tecelvables is zero.

Page | 11



Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 315t March 2025

b) Subsequent measurement and classification

The subsequent measurement of a financial asset depends on the classification of the asset on
the basis of business model for managing such assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of such asset. These classifications are:

o amortised cost

o fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

o fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except during the
period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

In case of financial assets which are recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL),
its transaction cost is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the
transaction cost is attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost:

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held
within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income(FVOCI):

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these
financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL):

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income is carried at fair value through profit or loss.

¢) Impairment of financial assets:

Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised for financial assets measured at
amortized cost and fair value through other comprehensive income. Loss allowance equal to
the lifetime expected credit losses is recognised if the credit risk on the financial instruments
has significantly increased since initial recognition. For financial instruments whose credit
risk has not significantly increased since initial recognition, loss allowance equal to twelve
months expected credit losses is recognised.

d) De-recognition of financial assets

e Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows
#nbm the asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset ané tially all risks and rewards
Dy ownership of the asset to another entity. If the

S

&
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 31t March 2025

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognize the financial
asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing of the proceeds received.

5.8.2 Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial Liabilities
a) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and financial liabilities at amortized cost, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are
recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of liabilities subsequently measured at amortized
cost net of directly attributable transaction cost.

b) Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

After initial measurement, such financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in statement of profit and Joss
when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. For liabilities designated as
FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risk is recognized in OCI.
These gains/losses are not subsequently transferred to profit and loss.

However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity on disposal.
All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit
and loss.

¢) Derecognition:
ﬁ T "‘;l}ﬁ_nancial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
s/ % eaneelled or expired. The difference between the carrying yalue of the financial liability and
1e/consideration paid is recognised in standalone stat : it and loss.

74

ol
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 315t March 2025

d) Offsetting financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet, if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

5.9 Inventories

Inventories other than non-moving inventories are valued at cost or estimated net realizable
value whichever is less. The cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition but exclude excise duty , Goods &
Service Tax on such goods where the company is eligible to take cenvat credit in accordance
with rule 3 (1) of the Cenvat Credit Rules’2004& Input Credit under GST rules.

The inventory items, which have not moved for more than three years, are considered as non-
moving inventories. Non-moving inventories are valued at cost reduced by ten percent of cost
every year from the year 2001-2002. Inventories (store spares) are issued on FIFO basis.

The scrapped / redundant stores items are valued at cost or estimated net realizable value
whichever is lower.

5.10 Employee Benefits
a) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period which the employees render the
related service are recognised in respect of employee’s services up to the end of the reporting
period and re-measured at the amounts to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as current employee benefits obligations in the balance sheet.

b) Other long term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12
month after the end of the period in which the employees render related service. They are
therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of
services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit
credit method.

The provision towards future payments to the disabled employee/ legal heirs of deceased
employees under the Employees Family Benefit Scheme is made based on the actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method.

The benefits are discounted using the market yield at the end of the reporting period that have
terms of approximating to the terms of related obligations. Re-measurement as a result of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in statement of

profit and loss.

==\ '8), Post-employment obligations
Prems ) W |\
% :gbe Company operates the following post-employment
,%Prfva'le\;\q‘\\ f
»

TCD 1
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 31t March 2025

) Defined benefit plans such as gratuity, post-employment medical plans, contributory
post retirement medical scheme and

(ii) Defined contribution plans such as provident funds and FSNL Executives’
Contributory Pension Scheme.

d.) Gratuity obligations

The liabilities or assets recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plan is the
present value of the defined benefits obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefits obligations are calculated annually by actuaries
using projected unit credit (PUC) acturial method.

The present value of defined benefits obligations is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on
Government bonds that are terms approximating to the terms of the related obligations.

The net interest cost is caleulated by applying the discounted rate to the net balance of defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit
expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. They are included in the retained earnings in the statement of
changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation resulting from amendments and
curtailments are recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss as past service cost.

e.) Post-employment medical obligations

Company provides postretirement healthcare benefits to their retirees. Entitlement to these
benefits is usually conditional on the employees remaining in service up to the retirement age
and the completion of minimum service period. The expected cost of these benefits is accrued
over the period of employment using the same accounting methodology as used for defined
benefit plans. Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited in other comprehensive income in
the period in which they arise.

During the financial year 2024-25, these benefits were discontinued.
Defined contribution plans

Company pays provident fund which is administered by a trust recognised by Income Tax
Authorities and contribution to this fund is charged to revenue. The contributions are
accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Pensioners benefits are secured through Employees’
Pension Scheme 1995.

AWNL executives’ contributory pension scheme is administered through an independent trust
contribution of this fund is charged to revenue. Th is being managed through Life
Thsurance Corporation of India.

&/
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 315t March 2025

5.11 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue from customer contracts are considered for recognition and measurement when the
contract is legally enforceable. Revenue is recognised for amounts the Company expects to be
entitled to in exchange for transferring promised goods and services to a customer excluding
amounts collected on behalf of third parties e.g. Goods and Service Tax. Revenue from
contracts with customers is recognised when the Company satisfies the performance
obligation identified in the contract through transfer of control of the promised goods and
services.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable and recognised
on accrual basis.

Items which are accounted on actual realization since realizability of such items are uncertain
in accordance with the Provisions of the accounting standards are as follows:-

Liquidated damages on Suppliers or contractors.
Interest thereon on Refund of Income Tax.
Interest Income is reported on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.

Unbilled revenue is recognized on the basis of final summary sheet of delivery challans that
are to be submitted to customers for acceptance on future date.

Service Charges

Service charges represent revenue earned by the Company for processing scrap and related
materials, based on rates agreed with / offered to the respective Steel Plants and other parties.
Any retrospective revision of Service Charges in line with rate revision clause of the agreement
with the customers is accounted for in the year of such revision to the extent such claims are
accepted by the customers.

Where Agreement with Customers is not finalised, the service charges are accounted for on
Provisional basis.

5.12 Income Tax
Income tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.

Current tax is the expected tax payable/receivable on the taxable income/loss for the year
using applicable tax rates for the relevant period, and any adjustment to taxes in respect of
previous years. Interest expenses and penalties, if any, related to income tax are included in
finance costs and other expenses respectively. Interest Income, if any, related to income tax
is included in other income. The Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted in the country where the

Company operates by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount
—=._of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used
 ¥1 79 Yor taxation purposes. A deferred tax liability is recognised based on the expected manner of
7. =\ Tealisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates
m:ﬁ en Tcted, or substantively enacted, by the end of the reporting-period. Deferred tax assets are
3*:'/{ recognised only to the extent that it is probable tha '- 2
Private 7 ,
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 315t March 2025

against which the asset can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle the
asset and the liability on a net basis
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset to the extent that they relate to taxes levied by the
same tax authority and there are legally enforceable rights to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities within that jurisdiction.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in the statement of profit
and loss, except when they relate to items credited or debited either in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

5.13 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present
obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot
be made.

Liabilities which are material and whose future outcome cannot be reasonably ascertained
are treated as contingent and not provided for and disclosed by way of notes to the accounts.
These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current
management estimate considering final disposal of respective cases on merit basis as assessed
by the management.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits
is probable.

Provisions are recognised, where the Company has any legal or constructive obligation or
where reliable estimate can be made for the amount of the obligation and as a result of past
events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. If it is no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settle
the obligation, the provision is reversed.

The provisions for indirect taxes and legal matters comprises of numerous separate cases that
arise in the ordinary course of business, These provisions have not been discounted as it is
<ot practicable for the Company to estimate the timing of the provision utilisation and cash
utflows, if any, pending resolution.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 315t March 2025

5.14 Provision for Doubtful Advances

Provision against advances will be made wherever such advances is considered doubtful in
the opinion of management. Writing back of liabilities/provisions will be made wherever such
liability/provision is considered no longer required in the opinion of management.

5.15 Statements of Cash Flows

The statement of cash flow is prepared by using the indirect method as prescribed in IND AS
7, whereby profit for the year is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature,
any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of
income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from
operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. The Company
considers all highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
to be cash equivalents.

5.16 Segment Reporting

Company is engaged in the business of Scrap Recovery and Allied Jobs in various Steel Plants
in India, which is the principal business activity of the company. Beside scrap recovery and
allied job. However as per Para 11 of Ind AS (108) i.e. “operating segment”, a business segment
should be identified as a reportable segment if its reported revenue, including both sales to
external customers and intersegment sales or transfers, is 10 percent or more of the combined
revenue, internal and external, of all reporting segments.

Further as regard to geographical segment, the primary criteria as envisaged in the accounting
standard are being considered of which details are as follows:
i.  Similarity of economic and political conditions
ii.  Relationship between operations in different geographical areas
ili.  Proximity of operations
iv.  Special risks associated with operations in particular area
v.  Exchange control regulations
vi.  Underlying currency risks.

Since the company is rendering services to units that are subject to same economical and
political conditions and are therefore exposed to same operational risks viz. exchange control
regulations, underlying currency risks, proximity of operations etc. Accordingly relationship
between operations in different geographical areas does not differ from each other and
therefore is not relevant for the company or the management.

5.17 Earnings Per Share
The earning per share and diluted earnings per share is calculated as per Ind AS 33.

Basic earning per share is computed by dividing profit after tax for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the
period
A TR\ ; ; ; ;
/= —~/:For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit after tax for the period
(B[ S \ ‘attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding

R __‘_ﬂ{.iring the period are adjusted for the effects of all potentj tive equity shares.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 315t March 2025

5.18 Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are cash in hand, balances with bank and short-term deposits
(original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), that are readily
convertible into cash.

5.19 Other equity

Components of other equity include the following;:

Re-measurement of defined benefit liability comprise the actuarial gain or loss from changes
in demographic and financial assumptions and return on plan assets.

Other transactions recorded directly in Other Comprehensive Income.
Retained earnings include all Current and Prior Period retained Profits.

5.20 Adjustment Pertaining to Earlier year

Income /Expenditure relating to Prior Period, which do not exceed Rs. 5.00 Lakhs in each
case, is treated as Income/Expenditure of Current year.

5.21 Provision of Trade Receivable

FSNL undertakes the job of recovery and processing of Scrap from Slag and refuse generated
during iron and steel making at Steel Plants. Commercial invoices are raised on fulfillment of
contractual obligation and there is no dispute about the service rendered by FSNL. Sometimes
the realisation of Debtors takes more time due to liquidity crunch of the stee] plants.

Provision for doubtful receivable based on expected credit loss is as under.

e of Debtors Amount of provisioning
6 Months to 1 year 50%
More than 1 year 100%

The policy will be effective from F.Y. 2024-25.
The policy is for accounting purposes only.

5.22 Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has notified the following new amendments to Ind AS
which the Company has not applied as they are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after April 1, 2025. The notification amended Ind AS 21 “The effects of changes in foreign
exchange rates”

The notification explains the following:
Exchangeable definition
Estimating the spot exchange rate when a currency is not exchangeable into another currency.

Disclosures requirements when an entity estimates a spot exchange rate because a currency
is not exchangeable into another currency
/"':'*:“_:_'?. - Recognition of effect of initially applying the amendments
o o ;\'-\».\
& 7 N . )
A\ Faragraph 31C and point (b) of Paragraph D27 of Appendix D ofInd AS 101 are amended and
©0 ) Paragraph 39Al is inserted in Ind AS 101. N
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FSNL Private Limited (formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)

CIN: U27102CT1979FTC005468

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

8 Right of use assets - Leases
Company as a lessee

The Company has entered into agreement with lessor for taking land on lease for a period 33 years. Measurement of right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities are calculated based on the fixed lease rentals payable under the lease agreements and

romnnnent tnwards maintenance and anv variahla navmeants ara avrludead

The Company does not have any leases for a term of 12 months or less and of low value.

Right of use assets

Particulars Total
Land 4
Right of use assets
Cost
Cost as at 1 April 2023 488.75 488.75
Additions 18.89 18.89
Deduction / Adjustments B -
As at 31 March 2024 507.63 507.63
Additions -
Deduction / Adjustments - -
As at 31 March 2025 507.63 507.63
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated depreciation as at 19.70
1 April 2023 19.70
Charge for the year 15.32 15.32
Deduction / Adjustments -
As at 31 March 2024 35.02 35.02
Charge for the year 15.36 15.36
Deduction / Adjustments - -
As at 31 March 2025 50.38 50.38
Carrying amount
As at 01 April 2023 469.05 469.05
As at 31 March 2024 472.61 472.61
As at 31 March 2025 457.25 457.25
(i) Amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
Lease liabilities
Opening balance 310.05 556.31 556.31
Additions - - »
Interest expense for the year 28.04 30.93 :
Lease rent paid during the year® (35.04) (277.19) -
Total of lease liabilities 303.05 310.05 556.31

¥ The lease rent payment include onetime non-refundable premium amounting to Rs. 247.49 lakhs as at March 31, 2024.

The following is the break up of current and non current lease liabilities:

A e

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
@mltles
é urent AN 1.83 7.00 246.27
[ UG 22 A
Ngn-cur 301.22 303.05 310.04
C.0
ease liabilities d z :
(Total'oFlease Liabiliti 303.05 310.05 556.31
pn'val_(«”\j._:l\k"
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FSNL Private Limited (formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)
CIN: U27102CT1979FTCO05468
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
(ii) Amounts recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

The statement of profit or loss shows the following amount relating to leases:

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 15.37 15.32
Interest expense on lease liability 28.04 30.93

Note : The aggregate depreciation on right-of-use assets has been included under depreciation and amortisation expense in

the statement of profit and loss.
(iii) Amounts recognized in the Statement of cash flows

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Cash outflow for leases (35.04) (277.19)

(iv) The details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2025, March 31, 2023 and April 1,

WS:

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
Lease liabilities
Less than one year 29.70 35.04 277.19
One to five years 148.50 148.50 153.84
Morethanifiye years 705.11 734.81 764.51
af S AN 883.31 918.35 1,195.54
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FSML Private Limited (formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)
CIN: U27102CT1979FTCO05468

Notes forming part of the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Ameounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

@ |Other financial assets As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
Mon-current Current Mon-current Current Non-current Current
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits 2662 273.07 2652 764 25,60 107
Bank deposits with oriainal maturity of more than 12 manths® - - 218000 7.640.00 -
Interest accrued on loans and advances < £ - = >
Term deposits 468.41 » 579.79 = 1,058.50
Loans to employees 002 0.02 0.37 058 0.06
Other loans and advances - > = 5 %
Loans to employees - - 0.01 001 025
Advance to employees 36.51 - 36.62 - 2236
Total other financlal assets 26.62 '?Tw. 2,25_.54 _ﬂd.-ﬂ 7,666.19 1,082.24
10 |Deferred tax assets (net) As at As at As at
31 March 2025 41 March 2024 01 Aol 2023
1,362.59 97250 67531
The bal comprises temporary differences ble to:
Deferred tax assets
Praperty, plant and equipment and intangible assets 18839 126.90 59,38
Other financial assets 471 4.73 2
Lease liabilities 76.27 78.03 14001
Other non-current assets 58.03 58.03 .
Trade receivable 601.50 224.00 13478
Other current Uabilities 163.60 11413 =
Provisions 385.17 485.63 459.19
Total deferred tax assets (A) 1,477.67 1,091.45 793.36
Deferred tax Uabilities
Right-of-use assets (115.08) (118.95) (118.05)
Total deferred tax liabllitles (B) (115.08) {118.95) {118.05)
Deferred tax assets (ne -B] !.‘362.5ﬁ 972.50 675.31
Movement in deferred tax balances
Particulars As at Recognised in R  in other As at
01 April 2023 t it of profit P Ive Incoma 31 March 2024
and loss
Right-of-use assets (118.05) (0.90) - (118.95)
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 59.38 67.52 - 126.90
Lease liabilities 140,01 {61.98) - 78.03
Other financial assets - 473 = 473
Trade receivable 13478 89,22 - 22400
Other non-current assets - 58.03 - 58.03
Other current liabilities 114.13 11413
Provisions 45919 7014 (43.70) 48563
|____Daferred taxassets (net) §75.31 34089 972,50 J
Particulars As at Recognised in R ised In other As at
31 March 2024 statement of profit |comprehensive income 31 March 2025
and loss 13
Right-of-use assets (118.95) 387 . (115.08)
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets 126.90 61.49 188.39
Lease liabilities F8.03 {1.76) . 76.27
Other financial assets 473 {0.02) - 471
Trade receivable 224.00 377.50 - 601.50
Other non-current assets 58,03 . 58.03
Other current liabilities 11413 49.47 u: 163.60
Provisions 48563 2azee2 (333.38) 38517
972.50 723,47 _(333.38) e 1.362,59 |
11 [Non-current tax assets (net) As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March2024 |  01April2023 |
Advance income tax [net of provision] 1,301.90 617,56 1,599.53
617 1.599.53 |
12 |Other assets Asat As at As at
Marc 24 3
Mon-current Current Non-current Current Mon-current Current
| Prepayments 9.94 G042 5.5 23245 631 201.90
Balance with statutory/government authorities -
GST input tax Credit A 848,06 182.92 - 25884
Others-(Advance with Public bodies) - 235.00 244.69 - 24557
Other advances - = & * =
Advances to emplayees - 61.07 5751 - 57.83
Advances to suppliers and service p - 26,28 3r82 - 44.38
Corporate Soclal Responsibility - BT * ] ]
Total other assets 9.94 :iza 7.60 E_B_!_ 755.39 6.31 ng_!_i_
13 |Inventories As at Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 Aprit2023 |
Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value
Steres and Spares 468.60 465.63 434.63
Stock of Non-Moving inventory 113.90 116.62 150.49
Stares and Spares - Awaiting Dispasal - 18.85 14.38
Inventory Shortage - 0.14 0.14
Stock In Transit - 1635 -
Provision - - '3
stock of non-moving 64.94 6332 81.62
inventory shortage - 0.14 014
Stores and Spares - Awaiting Disposal A \d - 1645 1221
Total inventories ——— 517.56 537.68 514.67
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FSHL Private Limited (formerily known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)

CIN: U27102CT1979FTCO05468

Notes forming part of the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts In TNR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

14 |Trade recelvables As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 Aprit 2023 |
Unsecured
-considered good 9,729.98 15,07532 7.499.84
-considered doubtful 533.67 890.01 1,247.54
10,263.65 15,965.33 8,747.38
Credit Impaired
-Credit impaired 2,38993 B90.01 53554
Less: Allowance for credit impaired (2,389.93) (890.01) (535.54)
Total trade receivables 10263651 1596533 8.747.38 |
Trada receivables ageing schedule :
As at 34 March 2025
Particulars Outstanding for following perlods from due date of payment
Mot due Less than 6 Months | & months - 1 year 1-2years 2 -3 years More than 3 years Tatal
Undi trade receivables - idered good 4.28B.58 544140 - - - - 9.729.98
Undi trade Rec bles - doubtiul - - 53367 - - = 533.67
Undisputed trade Receivables - credit impaired - - 53368 9.51 66.73 1.780.01 2.389.93
Less: All for credit impai and expected credit loss (533.68) (9.51) (66.73) (1,780.01) (2.389.93)
Total 4,288.58 5,441.40 533.67 = = - 10,263.65
As at 31 March 2024
Particulars Dutstanding for foll periods from due date of payment
Mot due Less than 6 Months | 6 months - 1 year 1-2years 2 -3 years More than 3 years Total
L trade receivat =L idered good 4,115.30 9,041.20 185209 66.73 - - 15,075.32
Undi trade Receivables - doubtful - - - - - 890,01 890.01
Undi trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - - B890.01 B890.01
Less: Allowance for credit impairment and expected credit loss (890.01) (890.01)
Total 4,115.30 9,041.20 1,852.09 66.73 - 850.01 15,965.33
As at 01 April 2023
Particulars Out ding for periods from due date of pay
Not due Less than 6 Months | 6 months - 1 year 1-2years 2-3years More than 3 years Total
Undi d trade rec - B nood 360324 3.985.40 - - - 7.20 7.499.84
Undisputed trade Recelvables - doubtful - - - - - 1.247.54 1.247.54
Undisputed trade Recelvables - credit impaired - = - - - 535,54 535.54
Less: A for credit impai and expected credit loss (535.54) (535.54)
Total 3,503.24 3,089.40 - . - 1,254.74 8,747.38
in d credit loss
Particulars Allowance for
expacted credit loss
As at 01 April 2023 535.54
Additlons during the year 35447
Utilisation during the year -
As at 31 March 2024 890,01 |
Additions during the year 1,499.93
Utilisation during the year -
As at 31 March 2025 2.389.93 |
15 |Cash and cash equivalents As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 Aprit 2023 |
Bal with banks
in current accounts 5,885.03 1,553.62 2,722.00
Deposit Account
Bank deposits with original maturity of upto 3 months - - *
Total cash and cash equivalents 5,885.03 1,553.62 2,722.00
16 |Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
Bank deposits with original maturity of more than 3 but less than 12 months * 10,428.55 8.126.98 7.992.67
Total bank balances other than cash and cash ﬂul\mlanu 10,428.55 8‘1 26.98 7,992.67
17 |Contract assets As at As at As at
31 March2025 | 3iMarch2024 | OlAoril2023
Unbilled revenue® 4,346.67 4,268.05 422091
Total contract assets 4Ia 46.67 US.DS 452 20.91
*Unbilled P services pr o = that have not yet been billed,
18 |Assets classified as hald for sale As at Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
Assets classified as held for sale: 253.30 283.25 232.90
Furniture & Fixtures - 0.01 0.01 0.01
Office Equipment 4,59 347 347
242,68 27363 22415
6,02 6.15 5.28
154 3389 4.95
28176 24936 227,95
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FSNL Privata Limitad (formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)

CIN: U27102CT1979FTCO06468

Motes forming part of the financlal statsmants for tha year ended 31 March 2025
famounts in INR Lakhs, uniess otherwisa stated)

®)

)

(O]

20

Equity shara capital
Particulars As at As at As at
24 March 2098 21 Mareh 3024 N1 Ancil 2273
Authorised squity share capital
50,000,000 (31 March 2025: 50,000,000 ;31 March 2024: 50,000,000 7 01 April 2023: 50,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
Issued, subscribed and fully pald up equity share caplital - " -
32,000,000 (31 March 2025: 32,000,000 ; 31 March 2024: 32,000,000 7 01 April 2023: 32,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 3,200.00 3,200,00 3,200.00
Tokal 3,200.00 3,200.00 3,200.00
| Reconcillation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of of the reporting period As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024 As at 01 April 2023
Equity shars Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount Numbar of shares Amount
‘Outstanding at the beginning of the year 3,20,00,000 3,200.00 3,20,00,000 3,200.00 3,20.00.000 3,200.00
Issued during the year E - . . = F
Total 3,20,00,000 3,200.00 3,20,00,000 3,200.00 3,20,00,000 3,200.00
Shares held by holding / halding ar of the holding or the As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024 As at 01 April 2023
Iblcaata holding
Equity shares Number of shares % of holding Number of shares % of holding Humber of shares % of holding
Kenolke Transport Co. LTD. (immediate and ultimate holding company) 319,909,999 99.99% ¢ 7 d
Konaike India Private Limited (subsidiary of its Immediate and ultimats holding company) 1 - - J
MSTC Ltd, ** - 3,19,99,900 99.00% 3,19,92.900 99.99%
Suchit Kumar Barnwal{Mominee of M5TC Ltd ** 100 100
Detalls of shareholders holding mors than 5% of the shares in the Com
Name of the sharab Asat 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024 As at 01 Agril 2023
Equity shares Number of shares | % of holding In | Number of shares | % of holding inthe | Number of sharss | % of holding In the
the class class class
Konoike Transport Co. LTD, 3.19,99,999 09.90%
MSTC Ltd. - 3,15,99,300 98.99% 3,19,99,900 99.99%
Detalls of sharaholding of promoters
HNama of the sharahalder sat 31 March 2025 As at 4 As at D1 April 2023
Number of shares | % of total number % of change Number of shares | % of total number| % of change during Number of shares | % of total number of
of shares during the year ofghares |  theysar shares
Konoike Transport Co., LTO. 3,19.90,999 90.99% 100% - -
MSTC Ltd, -100% 3,19,99,900 9.99% + 3,19,99,900 99.99%
Total 3,19,99,999 99.99% 3,19,99,900 99.99% 3,19,99. 900 99.99%

* Nil due to rounding off,
** Refer note number 1 for change of ownership during the year.

ttached to equity shares:

Rights, and

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of T 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares Is entitled to one vete

Board of Directors |s subject to the approval of the shareholders In the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitted to receive any of the remalning assets of the company,

currently, The distribution will be In proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharehalders.

per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the

after distribution of all preferential amounts. However, no such preferential amounts exist

Other equity
particitiid Retalned earnings | GeneralReservs | Totalother equity |
Balance as at 01 April 2023 (796.58) 19,399 51 18,602.93
Profit for the year ended 31 March 2024 6.5806.31 = 6.596.31
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (43.70) - (43.70)
Total comprahensive incoma for the year ended 31 March 2024 6,552.61 - 6,552.61
Final dividend (FY 22-23) {1.280.00) (1.280.00)
1st Interim dividend (FY 23-24) (540,00) . (640.00)
2nd Interim dividend (Fy 23-24) e {64000} - {640,00)
Transfer o general reserve oo~ (3,080,00] 3.080.00 =
Balance as at 31 March 204~ 2 W17 WL SR 116.03 22,479.51 22,595.54
Profit for the year ended C 6,206.40 - 6,296.40
Other comprehensive Lo (333,.38) - (333.38)
Dividend S H
Total comprehansive 5063.02 - 5,963.02
(5,940.00) 5,940.00 2
139.05 28,419.51] 28,558.56 |
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FSNL Private Limited (formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limlted)
CIN: U27102CT1979FTCO06468

Notes g part of the for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts In INR Lakhs, uniess otherwlse stated)
21 |other financlal Uablltles (Current) As at As at As at
31 March 20235 SiMarch2024 | 01 Aodl 2023
Employee payables 1110.28 139454 1.424.69
Security deposits and EMO 740.20 782,12 624.56
Capital creditors 362,03 160.54 316 |
abili] 2.212.51 2,337 2.052.41
22 |Provisions As at 31 March 2025 As ot 31 March 2024 As at 01 Aprll 2023
Non-current Current Non-current Current Non-current Current
Provislon for employee benefits:
Defined benefit obligations
-Employees family benefit scheme 519.33 193.96 609.48 199.18 B97.32 210.07
-Pravision for gratulty 40858 = (74.12) 2 {105.29) il
-Provision for leave encashment 1.549.84 157.17 190243 23241 2,09114 163.39
Retl benefit . + = - = -
-Post retirement medical benefit - 464478 257.25 4,863.58 34.70
-Contributary post retirement medical benefit - - 48481 23156 234.48 10.49
-Other retirement benefit 3554 4.75 39,29 7.10 47.26 4.90
Other emplayee benefits - - - - - .
-Long service awards 2043 213 6.66 0.75 4.74 0.43
-Additional resource generation scheme- non-executive - 58.18 % 55.03 58.51
-Parformance related pay - £83.00 43371 30442
-Wage revislon - - - 5.518.22
Other Provislons 282436 481.80 28537
Total provisions 2,531.72 S,E.EU 7‘613‘34 1.‘“0.?'? 7,833.23 6,680.50
23 |Trade payables (Current) As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
Trade payable for goods and services 2,719.92 4,773.94 3,816.12
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises * 180.40 42776 18207
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 2,539.52 4,346.18 363405
Total trade Elxahl.li 2,719.92 4,773.94 g&glﬂ.l!
Trade payables ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2025
Outsta T ing perio: m due date of payment
Partlculars
artie Hinbillag NotDia Less than 1 Year 1-2VYears 2-3Years Maore than 3 Years Tor
(1) Undisputed dues - micra and small enterprises 10,47 156.75 13.04 0.14 - - 180.4
(i) Undisputed dues - others 98.39 1.764.62 676.40 = - 011 2539.52
(i) Disputed dues - micro and small enterprises - - . - - - =
|(iv) Disputed dues - others - - - - - - -
Total 108.86 1,921.37 689.44 0.14 . 0.11 2,719.92
As at 31 March 2024
Particutars Unbilled Not Due for perlods from due date of payment Total
Less than 1 Year 1-2VYears 2 - 3 Years Mare than 3 Years
() Undisputed dues - micro and small enterprises 34.45 373.27 16.39 - 012 3.53 427.76
(ii) Undisputed dues - others 166.61 3,487.25 8544 63 184 201 14385 4,346.18
(1) Disputed dues - micro and small enterprises - - B - » o =
(Iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - * = p -
Total 201.06 3,860.52 561.02 1.84 213 147.38 4,773.94
As at 01 April 2023
Particulars Unbllled Mot Due Dutstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 1 Year 1-2Years 23 Years More than 3 Years
(i} Undisputed dues - micro and small entarprises 1579 146.40 1436 012 - 540 18207
(1) Undi=puted dues - others 163.37 223545 1,067.66 4.45 1.40 161.72 3,634.05
(/1) Disputed dues - micro and small enterprises - - - = - = £
(Iv) Disputed dues - Others - . = L z = =
Total 170.16 2,381.85 1,082.02 4.57 1.40 167.12 3,816.12
Detalls of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Med| P p Act, 2006 ('MSMED Act’)
don In thelr e with Its the

The Ministry of Micro and Small Enterprises (‘MSE)) has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the MSE should

Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allotted after filing of the Memarandum. Accardingly, the disclosure In respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at 31 March 2025 has been made In the financial
statements based on Information recelved and available with the Company. Further in the view of the management, the Impact of interest, If any, that may be payable In accordance with the provisions of the said Act is
not expected to be material. The Company has not received any claim for Interest from any supplier under the said Act.
The dues to micro and small entarprises as required under MSMED Act, 2006, based on the Information available with the Company, [s given below:

Partlculars Asat As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
T The principal amount remalning unpald to any supplicr a3 at the end of each accounting year 180.40 427.76 182,07
2. The Interest amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year 2 ’; =
3, Amount of Interest paid In terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amount of the payment made to the suppller beyond . - .
the appointed day during each accounting year
4. Amount of Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been pald but beyond the appointed day during - 3 -
the year) but without
adding the Interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006
6, The amount of Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year . - -
6. Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when tne interest dues as above are 5 .
actually pald to the small enterprise, for the p of disall € as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of MSMED Act, 2006
The infarmatlon has been glven In respect of such vendors to the extent they could be identified as micro and small enterprises as per MSMED on the basls of Information available with the Company.

24 |Other Uabilities (Current) Asat As at Asat

3iMarch2025 | 31iMarch2024 | 01 Aodl 2023
Pension for executiva 1A0 10 17405 1RIAT
Pensian for non executive RA N4 451 4R -
Statutory dues payable - - -
-TDS and TCS payable 58.28 253.82 213.02
-Provident fund payable 14002 156.18 152 38
-GST payable 740,50 935.71 545,80
Others liabilities 043 0.93 -
Total other Uabilities =1011 114 |J 1.749.37 187915
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FSNL Private Limited (farmerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)
CIN: U27102CT1979FTC005468

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

25 |Revenue from operations For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 (Restated)
Sale of services 45,895.18 43,461.01
Total revenue from operations 45,895.18 43,461.01
The Company generates revenue from customer contracts by providing services over time through its available service offerings..
Details of services rendered For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 (Restated)
Processing of Scrap & other items 45,895.18 43,461.01
Total 45,895.18 43,461.01
25.1 |Disaggregation of revenue based on timing of recognition of revenue:
a|Products/Services transferred at point in time - =
b|Products/Services transferred over time 45,895.18 43,461.01
Total 45,895.18 43,461.01
25.2 |Reconciliation of revenue recognised in statement of profit and loss with contracted price
Revenue as per contracted price 45,895.18 43,461.01
Less: Variable consideration (including consideration payable to .
customer) =
Total 45,895.18 43,461.01
25.3 |Contract balances
The following table provides information about contract assets from contract with customers
Contract Assets
Unbilled revenue
As at 1 April 2023 4,220.91
Add: Addition during the year 4,268.05
Less: Utilised during the year 4,220.91
As at 31 March 2024 4,268.05
Add: Addition during the year 4,346.67
Less: Utilised during the year 4,268.05
As at 31 March 2025 4,346.67
26 |Other income For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 (Restated)
Interest on fixed deposit 892.49 890.83
Gain on sale of fixed assets 8.90 12.86
Unwinding of discount on security deposits 0.10 0.09
Liabilities/provisions no longer required written back 771.04 2,336.21
Miscellaneous income* 106.21 70.77
Total other income 1,778.74 3,310.76
i Miscellaneaus income mainly constitute interest on income tax, employee recoverable, income from scrap sale and others.
27 |Operational Expenses For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 (Restated)
Lancing tubes 30.75 31.43
Oxygen and acetylene 306.44 295,71
Lubricants 177.30 173.53
Diesel and gasoline 4,739.38 4,574.42
Stores and spare parts === 1,267.09 1,125.42
TR SREENN Q.""" 4c 105.07 107.19
Water & power c—(é/;_‘_\c "‘r;\ Ao\
Total operational exfgensés . "\ een [\ 6,626.03 6,307.70
oy : D ~T
BH Aj s/ 4
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FSNL Private Limited (formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)

CIN: U2

‘Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

7102CT1979FTC005468

(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

28 |Employee benefit expenses For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 (Restated)
Salaries and wages 6,783.39 8,650.63
Contribution to PF and other funds 622.32 637.72
Contribution to gratuity fund 55.19 53.69
Staff welfare expenses 1,813.37 1,859.47
Total employee benefit expenses 9,274.27 11,201.51
29 (Finance costs For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 (Restated)
Interest
- on lease liabilities (refer note B) 28.04 30.93
Other finance cost 1.55 -
Total finance costs 29.59 30.93
30 |(Depreciation and amortization expense For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 (Restated)
Depreciation of
- Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (Refer note 3 1,701.37 1,683.09
- Right-of-use assets (Refer note 5) 15.37 15.32
Total depreciation and amortization expense 1,716.74 1,698.41
31 |Other expenses For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 (Restated)
Cost of Services throuah outside aaency 175.67 153.75
Equipment rent 14,784.24 13,820.27
Freight charges 44.19 64.70
Hiring of manpower for operational activities 1,924.75 1,478.05
Repair & Maintenance-Machinery 1,174.46 1,054.35
Repair & Maintenance-Building 9.02 41.26
Repair & Maintenance-Office Equipment 25.11 27.19
Repair & Maintenance-Vehicle 10.99 9.94
Insurance 193.35 163.79
Rates and taxes 50.92 90.90
Travelling and conveyance 51.51 70.36
Security Services 476.60 465.81
Telephone expenses 23.00 35.39
Printing and stationery 39.35 31.14
Legal and professional 134.63 39.99
Auditor's remuneration (refer note a below) 6.49 6.49
Provision for assets awaiting for disposal 58.66 65.33
Provision for doubtful debt 1,499.93 356.00
Advertising 0.27 6.82
Corprate social responsibility expenditure (refer note b below) 130.00 -
Miscellaneous expenses roe— ; ;
P 758.38 739.99
Total other expenses /6 ——_ -2\ 21,571.52 18,721.52

S\ |

C.0 * l!

BHILAI /& /f
—
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FSNL Private Limited (formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)

CIN: U27102CT1979FTCO05468

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

a Details of payments to auditors For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 (Restated)

Statutory audit fee 2.76 2.76

Tax audit fee 0.42 0.42

Out of pocket expenses 3.31 3.31
Total payments to auditors 6.49 6.49

Corporate social responsibility expenditure (CSR)
a, C5R amount required to be spent during the year as per section

135 of the Companles Act, 2013 read with Schedule VII thereof by

the Company during the year is Rs. 130.00 lakhs (previous year : Rs. 92.00 lakhs)
b. Expenditure related to corporate social responsibility expenditure is Rs. 130,00 lakhs (previous year : Rs. Nil)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 (Restated)
i) Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 130.00
92.00
i) Amount of expenditure incurred during the year* 130.00 =

iii) Shortfall at the end of the year
iv) Total of previous years shortfall
v) Reason for shortfall

vi) Nature of CSR activities

vii) Details of related party transactions, e.g. contribution to a trust
controlled by the Company in relation to CSR expenditure as per
relevant Accounting Standard

viii) Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred
by entering Into a contractual obligation, the movements in the
provision during the year shall be shown separately

Not applicable
The Company has distributed
six ambulances as part of its
commitment to the 'Health
and Nutrition' theme approved
by the Department of Public
Enterprises (DPE) for
Corporate Saocial Responsibility
(CSR) activities in the financial
year 2024-25, as per the Office
Memorandum (OM) F. No.
8/2/2018-Dir (CSR) dated 15th
March 2024

Not applicable

In accordance with the
recommendation of the CSR
Monitoring Committee, a Board
resolution was passed on 1st April
2020 for a contribution of Rs. 500
Lakhs to the PM CARES Fund
during the financial year 2020-
21.As per the guidelines, FSNL is
not required to undertake any
additional CSR activities for the
financial year 2023-24. The CSR
expenditure of Rs. 92 Lakhs for FY
2023-24 shall be set off against
the excess CSR expenditure
incurred in FY 2020-21, thereby
fulfilling the CSR requirements for
the year.

Particulars

Paid in cash

Yet to be paid in cash

For the year ended31 March 2025

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset

On purpose other than (i) above

136.77

For the year ended31 March 2024 (Restated)

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset

On purpose other than (i) above

* Tatal amount spend on
Rs. 6.77 is prepaid for ;

R @é@_{gg\year FY 2024-25 was RS. 136.77 lacs out of which Rs. 130.00 lacs Is for the FY 2024-25 and
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32 [Income tax expense For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 (Restated)
A [Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current tax 2,549.46 2,612.58
Deferred tax charge/(credit) (390.09) (297.19)
Total 2,159.37 2,215.39
B |Amounts recognised in the other comprehensive income
Incorr?e tax on remeasurement loss of post employment defined (112.13) (14.70)
benefit plans
Total (112.13) (14.70)
Total tax expense (A+B) 2,047.24 2,200.69
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profit before tax 8,455.77 8,811.70
Enacted statutory income tax rate 25.168% 25.168%
Tax expense 2,128.15 2,217.72
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible in calculating
taxable income
Corporate social responsibility expenditure 32.72 =
Interest on statutory dues 0.03 &
Donation 0.16 0.38
Deduction (Bhilai Unit) 0.79 -
Other Provision (2.48) (2.71)
Tax expense 2,159.37 2,215.39
33 [Earnings per share For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 (Restated)
Profit for the year 6,296.40 6,596.31
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic 320 320
EPS and diluted EPS
Earnings per equity share in INR (Nominal value of INR 10
each)
Basic (INR) 20.61
Diluted (INR) 20.61
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34 Disclosure of defined benefit obligation as per Ind AS 19

a)

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans: An amount of Rs. 980.90 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2025 (Rs. 1270.23 lakhs for March 31, 2024) pertaining to
employer’s contribution to provident fund, pension fund, executive contributory pension scheme and non-executive contributory pension scheme are

recognised as an expense and included in 'Employee benefits expenses' in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

For the year ended 31 | For the year ended 31
Benefit (Contribution to) Mat:h s M::‘h a0k
Provident Fund and Pension Fund 622.32 637.72
FSNL Executives' Contributory Pension Scheme 162.00 179.05
FSNL Non- Executives' Contributory Pension Scheme 196.58 453.46
Total 980.90 1,270.23

Defined Benefit Plans

1. Leave encashment

It is payable on separation to eligible employees, shall be limited to 300 days (Earned Leave and Half-Pay Leave combined), and HPL shall not be
commuted as per DPE Guidelines for calculation of 300 days limit. Encashment of accumulated earned leave is also allowed up to 90 days once in a

calendar year.
2. Gratuity

The Gratuity is payable on separation at the rate of 15 days pay for each completed year of service to eligible employees who render continuous service
for a minimum period of 5 years and up to 30 years. The Gratuity is calculated at the rate of one month's wages last drawn by the employee for every

completed year of service in excess of 30 years. The maximum amount of Gratuity payable to employee is Rs. 20.00 lakhs.
The Gratuity is funded with LIC of India. The company has done actuarial valuation of Gratuity Fund in accordance with Ind AS 19.

3. Employee family benefit scheme

Monthly payment to disabled separated employees / legal heirs of deceased employees in lieu of prescribed deposit till the notional date of

superannuation of deceased employees.

4. Contributory scheme for post retirement medical facilities (Domiciliary):

The payment of medical facilities (Domiciliary) to the separated executives as covered under contributory scheme for post retirement medical facilities

(domiciliary) for executives.
This Plan has been removed effectively during the Financial year 2024-25 by making the balance payment.
5. Post retirement medical benefit:

The Post Retirement Medical Benefit is a medical benefit to the superannuated employees and their spouse. This is available to superannuated employees

at any hospital under the Mediclaim Insurance Policy.
This Plan has been removed effectively during the Financial year 2024-25 by making the balance payment.

6. Post retirement settlement benefit
It is payable to retiring employees for settlement at their declared home town.

7. Long term service award
1t is payable in kind for rendering minimum 25 years of service and also on superannuation.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields

liability will tend to increase.

:ir;:r(estment at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. When there is a deep market for such bonds and if the return on plan asset is
below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.
Tiiberest Fisk The defined benefit plan liability calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. If bond yields fail, the defined benefit plan

Longevity risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants
bath during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

Salary risk

increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an

Leave Encashment

- s the oosition of linkilities relatin to plas

Particulars - - As at As at As at
a9 W) A\ /m 31 March 2025| 31 March 2024 01 April 2023

&, : 1.707.01 2.134.84 2.254.53

1,707.01 2.134.84 2.254.53
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31 March 2025

A Movement in present values of defined benefit liability ‘Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Defined benefit obligation at beainning of yvear 2,134.84 2,254.53 2,379.92
2 Current service cost 275.31 295.90 324.79
3 Interest cost on the defined benefit obligation 11B.45 141,17 129.91
4 Actuarial loss/(gain) - experience (34.17) (103.97) 95,27
5 Actuarial loss/(gain) - demographic assumptions . .
6 Actuarial loss/(qain) - financial assumptions 97.95 79.77 (106.28)
7 Benefits paid by the Company (885.37) (532.56) (569.08)
DBOQ atthe end of current vear 1.707.01 2.1 2.254.53 |
B Expense recognized in statement of profit and loss Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Current service cost 275.31 295.90 324.79
2 Net interest on net defined benefit liability 118.45 141.17 129.91
3 Immediate recognition of(gain)/losses - other long term employee benefit pla 63.78 (24.20) (11.01)
Cost recognized in statement of profit and loss 457.54 412.87 443.69
C Expense recognized in the other comprehensive income Year ended Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

1 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to experience adjustment (34.17) (103.97) 95.27
2 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to demographic assumption changes ~ ® a
3 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to financial assumption changes 97.95 79.77 (106.28)
4 Actuarial loss/(gain) arising during the period 63.78 (24.20) (11.01)
Actuarial loss/(gain) recognized via OCI at current year end : : -
D Defined benefit cost Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
i Current service cost 275.31 295.90 324.79
2 Net interest on net defined benefit liability 118.45 141.17 129.91
3 Actuarial loss/(gain) recognized in other comprehensive income = % =
4 Immediate recognition of (gains)/losses - other long term employee benefit p 63.78 (24.20) (11.01)
Defined benefit cost 457.54 412.87 443.69
E Expected benefit payments for the year ending As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
1st following year 162.20 240.41 169.09
2nd following year 304.50 346.99 497.97
3rd following year 212.91 323.29 414.32
4th following year 213,51 236.55 443.18
5th following year 227.97 248.08 350.98
6th following year and onwards 681.49 911.40 1,789.01
(0] Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation (years) 4.00 4.00 5
(ii) Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
a Discount rate
Discount rate (in %) 6.50% 7.00% 7.10%
Effect on DBO due to 1% increase in discount rate (83.21) (100.40) (106.55)
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease in discount rate 93.23 112.22 118.78
b Salary escalation rate
Salary escalation rate first year (in %) 10% 10% 10%
Salary escalation rate thereafter (in %) 6% 6% 6%
Effect on DBO due to 1% increase in salary escalation rate 92.24 111.57 11817 |
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease in salary escalation rate (83.85) (101.61) (107.91)
c - = 60 60 60
S Y
d =37, \ 2\ IALM (2006-08) Ultimate
AT Y
3.0 ) & ,|'|
8HILA
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b)

Gratuity
The following tables summaries the position of liabilities relating to plans:

Particulars As at As at As at
31 |31 March 2024 01 April 2023
Present value of liability 4,589.02 5,238.15 5,914.66
Fair Value of assets at the end of current period (4,182.44) (5,312.27) (6,019.95)
LEunded Status 406.58 (74.12) (105.29)
Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Present value of liability 4,589.02 5,238.15 5,914.66
Liability recagnized in balance sheet (unfunded obligation) 4,589.02 5,238.15 5,914.66
A Movement in present values of defined benefit liability Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year 5,238.15 5,914.66 6,918.20
2 Current service cost 61.08 61.88 123.67
3 Interest cost on the defined benefit obligation 315.19 380.97 388.59
4 Actuarial loss/(gain) - experience 328.79 (70.56) (3.61)
5 Actuarial loss/(gain) - demographic assumptions - -
6 Actuarial loss/(gain) - financial assumptions 116.72 48.91 (210.81)
7 Benefits paid from plan asset (1,470.91) (1,097.71) (1,301.38)
DBO at the end of current year 4,589.02 5,238.15 5,914.66
B Movements in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Fair value of the assets at end of prior period 5,312.27 6,019.95 6,283.12
2 Interest Income on plan assets 321.08 380.16 368.90
3 Employer Contributions 20.00 20.00 635.08
4 Return on plan assets greater/(lesser) than discount rate - (19.13) 34.23
5 Benefits paid (1,470.91) (1,097.71) (1,301.38)
Fair Value of assets at the end of current period 4,182.44 5,312.27 6,019.95
C Expense recognized in statement of profit and loss Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Current service cost 61.08 61.88 123.67
2 Net interest on net defined benefit liability (5.89) (8.19) 19.69
Cost recognized in statement of profit and loss 55.19 53.69 143.36
D Expense recognized in the other comprehensive income Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to experience adjustment 328.79 (70.56) (3.61)
2 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to demographic assumption changes - - -
3 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to financial assumption changes 116.72 48.91 (210.81)
4 Return on plan assets(greater)/less than discount rate - 19.13 (34.23)
Actuarial loss/(gain) recognized via OCI at current year end 445.51 (2.52) (248.65)
E Defined benefit cost Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Current service cost 61.08 61.88 123.67
2 Net interest on net defined benefit liabi lity/ (asset) (5.89) (8.19) 19.69
3 Actuarial loss/( It wzed in other compr 445.51 (2.52) (248.65)
4 Immediate r Dﬂ-&f'\l{d losses - othgfAD benefit p - - .
(WA N NG W) ]
Defined bedefit dostey o \ Al 1] 7 e '\ 500.70 51.17 (105.29)
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F Expected benefit payments for the year ending As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
1st following year 526.50 770.03 552.79
2nd following year 937.81 967.24 1,364.28
3rd following year 746.09 912.37 1,009.65
4th following year 668.50 706.64 920.53
5th following year 726.19 653.29 724.60
6th following year and onwards 1,440.96 1,937.87 2,387.64
(i Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation (years) 4 4 E
(i) Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
a Discount rate
Discount rate (in %) 6.50% 7.00% 7.10%
Effect on DBO due to 1% increase in discount rate (177.36) (189.48) (216.95)
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease in discount rate 195.61 207.55 236.64
b Salary escalation rate
Salary escalation rate first year (in %) 10% 10% 10%
Salary escalation rate thereafter (in %) 6% 6% 6%
Effect on DBO due to 1% increase in salary escalation rate 61.43 59.00 62.24
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease in salary escalation rate 63.58 (61.68) (63.87)
C Retirement age (in years) 60 60 60
d Mortality rate IALM (2006-08) Ultimate
c) Employee Family Benefit Scheme
The following tables summaries the position of liabilities relating to plans:
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
Present value of liability 713.29 808.64 907.39
Liability recognized in balance sheet (unfunded obligation) 713.29 808.64 907.39
A Movement in present values of defined benefit liability Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year 808.64 907.39 940.25
s Current service cost - = =
3 Interest cost on the defined benefit obligation 48.42 56.15 49.54
4 Actuarial loss/(gain) - experience 78.40 75.53 229.61
5 Actuarial loss/(gain) - demographic assumptions = #
6 Actuarial loss/(gain) - financial assumptions 11.75 2.72 (29.55)
7 Benefits paid by the Company (233.92) (233.15) (282.46)
DBO at the end of current year 713.29 808.64 907.39
B Expense recognized in statement of profit and loss Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1. Current service cost - = =
2 Net interest on net defined benefit liability 48.42 56.15 49.54
3 Immediate recognition of(gain)/losses - other long term employee benefit pla 90.15 78.25 200.06
Cost recognized in statement of profit and loss 138.57 134.40 249.60
C Expense recognized in the other comprehensive income Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Actuarial lo /(gain) due to experience adjustment 78.40 75.53 229.61
2 Actuariaiios q(egarqjﬂhe to demographic assumption - : i
3 Actu (gain) deto financial assumption ch 11.75 2.72 (29.55)
4 Actugfrial (gain)/loss ar A\Y 90.15 78.25 200.06
Actilaga loss/(gain)r gt L - : -
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d)

D Defined benefit cost Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Current service cost - - .
2 Net interest on net defined benefit liability 48.42 56.15 49.54
3 Actuarial loss/(gain) recognized in other comprehensive income 5 - L
4 Immediate recognition of (gains)/losses - other long term employee benefit p 90.15 78.25 200.06
Defined benefit cost 138.57 134.40 249.60
E Expected benefit payments for the year ending As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
1st following year 200.16 206.01 217.40
2nd following year 162.84 181.21 186.56
3rd following year 116.12 149.53 165.93
4th following year 88.02 102.82 138.44
5th following year 56.41 76.94 92,70
6th following year and onwards 140.16 177.56 222.48
() Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation (years) 4 4 5
(i) Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
a Discount rate
Discount rate (in %) 6.50% 7.00% 7.10%
Effect on DBO due to 1% increase in discount rate (22.98) (26.14) (30.23)
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease in discount rate 25.20 28.55 32.99
Settlement Allowance
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
Present value of liability 40.29 46.39 52.16
Liability recognized in balance sheet (unfunded obligation) 40.29 46.39 52.16
A Movement In present values of defined benefit Liability Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year 46.39 52.16 62.49
2 Current service cost 1.65 1.92 2.24
3 Interest cost on the defined benefit obligation 3.09 3.48 3.78
4 Actuarial loss/(gain) - experience (6.94) (4.97) (11.78)
5 Actuarial loss/(gain) - demographic assumptions - 0 -
6 Actuarial loss/(gain) - financial assumptions 0.69 0.16 (1.67)
7 Benefits paid by the Company (4.59) (6.36) (2.90)
DBO at the end of current year 40.29 46.39 52.16
B Expense recognized in statement of profit and loss Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Current service cost 1.65 192 2.24
2 Net interest on net defined benefit liability 3.09 3.48 3.78
3 Immediate recognition of (gains)/losses — other long term employee benefit p (6.25) (4.81) (13.45)
Cost recognized in statement of profit and loss (1.51) 0.59 (7.43)
c Expense recognized in the other comprehensive income Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to experience adjustment (6.94) -4.97 (11.78)
2 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to demographic assumption changes * - #
3 Actuarial lossAgaim)-gue to financial assumption changes 0.69 0.16 (1.67)
4 Actuariak{gain)7loss‘atising during period (6.25) (4.81) (13.45)
Actuayjaltoss/{gain) xécognized via OCI at current - - -
ey A
* C.o * J! .
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e)

D Defined benefit cost Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Current service cost 1.65 1.92 2.24
2 Net interest on net defined benefit liability 3.09 3.48 3.78
3 Actuarial loss/(gain) recognized in other comprehensive income - - #
4 Immediate recognition of (gains)/losses - other long term employee benefit p (6.25) (4.81) (13.45)
Defined benefit cost (1.51) 0.59 (7.43)
E Expected benefit payments for the year ending As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
1st following year 4.90 7.34 5.07
2nd following year 9.23 9.17 13.28
3rd following year 7.65 8.45 9.88
4th following year 6.70 6.57 9.05
5th following year 7.25 5.78 7.35
6th following year and onwards 15.91 16.25 23.95
(i Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation (years) % 4.00 5
(i) Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
a Discount rate
Discount rate (in %) 6.50% 7.00% 7.10%
Effect on DBO due to 1% increase in discount rate (1.35) (1.48) (1.73)
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease in discount rate 1.46 1.60 1.86
b Retirement age (in years) 60 60 60
[+ Mortality rate TALM (2006-08)Ultimate
Gift Allowance
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
Present value of liability 22.56 7.41 517
Liability recognized in balance sheet (unfunded obligation) 22.56 7.41 5.17
A Movement in present values of defined benefit liability Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year 7.41 5.17 6.15
2 Current service cost 0.37 0.19 0.22
3 Interest cost on the defined benefit obligation 0.40 0.33 0.34
4 Actuarial loss/(gain) - experience 0.97 0.01 0.05
5 Actuarial loss/(gain) - demographic assumptions - -
6 Actuarial loss/(gain) - financial assumptions 0.45 0.04 (0.17)
7 Benefits paid by the Company (3.30) (1.06) (1.42)
8 Past service - plan amendments 16.26 2.73 =
DBO at the end of current year 22.56 7.41 5.17
B Expense recognized in statement of profit and loss Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025/ 31 March 2024] 31 March 2023
1 Current service cost 0.37 0.19 0.22
2 Net interest on net defined benefit liability 0.40 0.33 0.34
3 Past service cost - plan amendments 16.26 273 -
4 Immediate recognltlgn of (gains)/losses - other long term employee benefit p 142 0.05 (0.12)
Cost recugni t of profit and loss 18.45 3.30 0.44
f _/ |_ \
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C Expense recognized in the other comprehensive income Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to experience adjustment 0.97 0.01 0.05
2 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to demographic assumption changes = = a
3 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to financial assumption changes 0.45 0.04 (0.17)
4 Actuarial (gain)/loss arising during period 1.42 0.05 (0.12)
Actuarial loss/(galn} recognized via OCI at current year end - = -
D Defined benefit cost Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Current service cost 16.63 2.92 0.22
2 Net interest on net defined benefit liability 0.40 0.33 0.34
3 Actuarial loss/(gain) recognized in other comprehensive income - - C:
4 Immediate recognition of (gains)/losses - other long term employee benefit p 1.42 0.05 (0.12)
Defined benefit cost 1B.45 3.30 0.44
E Expected benefit payments for the year ending As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
1st following year 2.20 0.78 0.44
2nd following year 4.27 0.87 1.28
3rd following year 341 0.81 0.94
4th following year 3.00 0.63 0.86
5th following year 4.20 0.63 0.70
6th following year and onwards 8.27 4,77 2.56
(N Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation (years) 4 4.00 4
(ii) Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
a Discount rate
Discount rate (in %) 6.50% 7.00% 7.10%
Effect on DBO due to 1% increase in discount rate (0.88) (0.36) (0.18)
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease in discount rate 0.96 0.39 0.19
b Retirement age (in years) 60 60 60
c Mortality rate IALM (2006-08)Ultimate
f)  Contributory Post Retirement Medical Benefit Scheme
The following tables summaries the position of liabilities relating to plans:
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
Present value of liability - 508.37 244.97
Liability recognized in balance sheet (unfunded obligation) - 508.37 244.97
A Movement in present values of defined benefit liability Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year - 244,97 266.84
2 Current service cost - 4.85 5.89
3 Interest cost on the defined benefit obligation - 16.44 15.85
4 Actuarial loss/(gain) - experience - 263.44 5.06
5 Actuarial loss/(gain) - demographic assumptions - -
6 Actuarial loss/(gain) - financial assumptions - 5.44 (26.32)
7 Benefits paid by the Company - (26.77) (22.35)
DBO at the end of current year - 508.37 244.97
B Expense recognized in statement of profit and loss Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
e
— \.“\‘
1 Current 5 %:é\r 3 e - 485 5.89
2 Net intefést-on nat nefit liability - 16.44 15.85
f ke f ';"“L*-"-r"l ‘.Ir!nl
Cost regiodinized in‘statefenk of profit and loss - 21.29 21.';_:_3
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FSNL Private Limited (Formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)

CIN: U27102CT1979FTCO05468

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

C Expense recognized in the other comprehensive income Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to experience adjustment - 263.44 5.06
2 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to demographic assumption changes 5 4 .
3 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to financial assumption changes - 5.44 (26.32)
Actuarial loss/(gain) recognized via OCI at current year end - 268.88 (21.26)
D Defined benefit cost Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024/ 31 March 2023
1 Current service cost - 4.85 5.89
2 Net interest on net defined benefit liability - 16.44 15.85
3 Actuarial loss/(gain) recognized in other comprehensive income - 268.88 (21.26)
4 Immediate recognition of (gains)/losses - other long term employee benefit p - - -
Defined benefit cost = 290.17 0.48
E Expected benefit payments for the year ending As at As at As at
31 March 2025! 31 March 2024
1st following year - 23.56 10.49
2nd following year - 34.53 15.84
3rd following year - 36.82 17.49
4th following year - 37.73 18.70
5th following year - 38.47 19.23
6th following year and onwards - 212.90 107.84
(0] Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation (years) - 11 11
(ii) Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
a Discount rate
Discount rate (in %) 7.00% 7.10%
Effect on DBO due to 1% increase in discount rate - (50.40) (24.67)
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease in discount rate - 60.23 29.52
b Retirement age (in years) - 60 60
[ Mortality rate TALM (2006-08)Ultimate
g) Post Retirement Medical Benefit
The following tables summaries the position of liabilities relating to plans:
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
Present value of liability - 4,902.05 4,808.28
Liability recognized in balance sheet (unfunded obligation) - 4,902.05 4,898.28
A Movement in present values of defined benefit liability Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year - 4,898.28 4,639.25
2 Current service cost - 47.71 63.66
3 Interest cost on the defined benefit obligation - 341.48 281.34
4 Actuarial loss/(gain) - experience - (264.61) 712.25
5 Actuarial loss/(gain) - demographic assumptions - =
6 Actuarial loss/(gain) - financial assumptions - 56.65 (595.36)
7 Benefits paid by the Company - (177.46) (202.86)
DBO at the end of cyr¥ént year - 4,902.05 4,898.28
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B Expense recagnized in statement of profit and loss Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 Marrh 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1: Current service cost - 47.71 63.66
2 Net interest on net defined benefit liability - 341.48 281.34
Cost recognized In statement of profit and loss - 389.19 345.00
C Expense recognized In the other comprehensive income Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 M 24] 31 March 2023
1 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to experience adjustment - (264.61) 712.25
2 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to demographic assumption changes + - =
g Actuarial loss/(gain) due to financial assumption changes - 56.65 (595.36)
Actuarial lnss/(galn) recognized via OCI at current year end - (207.96) 116.89
D Defined benefit cost Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Current service cost 2 47.71 63.66
2 Net interest on net defined benefit liability - 341.48 281.34
3 Actuarial loss/(gain) recognized in other comprehensive income - (207.96) 116.89
4 Immediate recognition of (gains)/losses — other long term employee benefit p - = =
Defined benefit cost - 181.23 461.89
E Expected benefit payments for the year ending As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
1st following year - 266.10 35.91
2nd following year - 279.41 162.95
3rd following year - 298.44 179.98
4th following year . 316.14 197.17
5th following year - 333.50 213.39
6th following year and onwards 1,900.12 1,300.31
0] Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation (years) - 12.00 13
(ii) Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
a Discount rate
Discount rate (in %) - 7.00% 7.10%
Effect on DBO due to 1% increase in discount rate - (522.58) (550.31)
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease in discount rate = 629.37 668.41
b Medical Inflation
Medical Inflation(in %) - 5% 5%
Effect on DBO due to 1% increase in Medical Inflation - 630.48 670.19
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease in Medical Inflation 2 (5632.37) (560.92)
c Retirement age (in years) - 60 60
d Mortality rate IALM (2006-08)(modified)Ultimate

y
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35

36

a7

Falr value measurement

Falr value hlerarchy

Fair values are classified into different levels in a Fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the tec
« Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labilities,
« Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices Included within Level 1 that ars observable for the asset or liability, either directly (l.e. as prices) or Indiractly (i.e. derived from prices).
» Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

185 as foll

There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the period.

{a) Category wise detalls as to carrying value, falr value and the level of falr value measurement hierarchy of the Company's financlal
Instruments are as follows:

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024 As at 01 April 2023
Carrying amount Fair valus Carrying amount Fair value Carrylng amount Fair value

Financial assets measured at amortised cost*

- Trade recelvables 10,263.65 10,263.65 15,965.33 15,965.33 8,747.38 8,747.38
- Cash and cash equivalents 5,885.03 5,885.03 1,553.62 1,553.62 2,722.00 2,722.00
- Other bank balances 10,428 55 10,428.55 8,126.98 8,126.98 7.992.67 7.99267
- Other financial assets B04.63 804.63 2.830.97 2,830.97 8,748.43 8,748.43
Total financlal assets 27,381.86 27,381.86 28,476,90 28,476.90 28,210.48 28,210.48
Financlal liabilitles measured at amortised cost®

- Lease liabilities 303.08 303.05 310,05 310.05 556.31 556,31
- Trade payables 2.719.92 2,719.92 4,773.94 4,773.94 381612 3,816.12
- Other financial labilities 2.212.51 221251 2,337.20 2,337.20 205241 205241
Total financlal liabilitles 5,235.48 5,235.48 7,421.19 7,421.19 6,424.84 6,424.84

* Classified as Level 3

Fair value of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other financial assets, lease labilities, trade payables, other financial labilities reasonably approximates to their respective carrying
amounts,

Capital management

Equity share capital, borrowings and other equity are considered for the purpose of Company's capital The C y's objective for capital management s to manage its capital so as to safeguard its
ability to continue as a going concern and to support the growth of the Company. The capital structure of the Company is based on management's jJudgement of its strategic and day-to-day needs with a focus on
total equity so as to maintain investors, creditors and market confidence, The funding requirements are met through equity, borrowings and operating cash. The Company Is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements,

Financial Risk Management

The Company’s board of directors has overall ility for the I and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify
and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and contrels and to monitor risks and adherence to limits, Risk management policles and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, alms to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment In
which all employees understand their roles and obligations. Further, Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to
the board of directors.

1) Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financlal instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating
activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial Institutions and other financial assets. Management has a credit policy In place and the exposure
to credit risk is monitored on an ongeing basis.

Credit risk management considers available reasonable and supportive forward-looking Information Including indicators like external credit rating (as far as available), macro-economic Information (such as
regulatory changes, government directives, market interest rate),

Expasure to Credit Risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:
Particulars As at As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
- Trade receivables 10,263.65 15,965.33 8,747.38
- Cash and cash equivalents 588503 1,553.62 2,722.00
- Other bank balances 10,428.55 8,126.98 7,992.67
- Other financial aszets 804,63 283097 8,748.43
Total 27.3&36 28,476.90 28,210.48
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The following table provides ageing of trade recelvables at the reporting date:

As at As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
Within the credit period 4,288.58 4,115.30 3,503.24
Less than 6 months 544140 9,041.20 3,989.40
6 maonths - 1 year 1,067.35 1,852.09 -
1-2years 951 66.73 -
2 -3 years 66,73 - -
More than 3 years 1,780.01 1,780.02 1,790.28
Less: Allowance for credit impairment and expected credit loss (2,389.93) (890.01) (535.54)
Total 10,263.65 1.5|955.33 &?4?.38

i} Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk Is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or ancther financlal asset.

The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Company's reputation. The objective of Company Is to ensure liquidity which Is sufficient to meet company operational requirements in short-term and long-term,

The tables below analyze the Company's financial Uabilities into relevant maturity companyings based on their contractual maturities,

Particutaes Within 1 year Between 1 and 3 years| More than 3 years Total

31-Mar-25

- Lease labilitles (undiscounted) 29.70 59.40 794.21 B83.31
- Trade payables 2.719.92 - = 2,719.92
- Other financial liabilities 221251 - - 2,212.51
Total 4,962.13 59.40 794.21 5,815.74
31-Mar-24

- Lease liabilities (undiscounted) 35.04 58.40 82391 918.35
- Trade payables 4,773.94 - - 4,773.94
- Other financial liabilities 2,337.20 - - 2,337.20
Total 7,146.18 59.40 823.91 8,029.49
01-Apr-23

- Lease labilitles (undiscounted) 277.19 64.74 853,60 1,195.54
- Trade payables 3816.12 - - 3,816.12
- Other financial liabilities 2,052.41 = - 2,052 41
Total 6,145.72 64.74 B53.60 7,064.07

iii) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk
and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk within accey I , while optimizing the
return.

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Company accounts only for fixed rate bank deposits. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

Further, the Company does nat have any variable rate interest bearing financial instruments, hence there is no interest rate risk,

(b) Currency risk
Foreign Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial Instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may

have a potential impact on the statement of profit and loss and equity, where any transaction references mare than one currency or where assets/Uabilities are denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the Company.

Forelgn currency risk exposure
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38

A

Related party disclosures
Names of related parties and related party relationships

(i)Related parties and nature of the relationship

Name of the party Description of relationship

Konoike Transport Co., Ltd. Holding Company ( holding company w.e.f 21.01,2025 )

MSTC Limited Holding Company ( ceased to be holding company w.e.f 21.01.2025)

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place

(i} Kev management personnel

Name of the party Deseription of relationship

Adya Prasad Pandey Independent Director ( From 18.04.2022 to 01.11.2024 )
Nishant Agrawal Company Secreiary ( joined w.e.f. 27.02.2024)

Sumit Kumar Roy Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f 18.05.2023)

Related party transactions

(i) The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year:

Nature of the transaction Name of related party For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Restated)
(i) Other of expenses - by the Company
(a) E-Office and HRMS Software AMC & others MSTC Limited 3.00 2.45
(b) Paid Service charge against e-Auction MSTC Limited 0.68 1.59
(ii) Key management personnel compensation For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Restated)
Short- term benefits 51.13 80.41
Post employment benefits (3.01) (1.41)
Other Long-term employee benefils 2.85 (4.12)
(iii) Independent Director's Sitting Fees For the year ended| For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
___(Restated)|
Adya Prasad Panday 1.35 2.55

, , ' o T .
ii) There is no balances outstanding Mﬂ\h‘;ﬁmﬁnt and previous years.

X
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39 Contingent liabilities

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2025| 31 March 2024 1 April 2023

(a) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt

i) For compensation to ex-employees and others under adjudication estimated at 466.33 853.39 83118

ii) For repair job at Dolvi Unit claimed by M/s Audumber Engineering Works as per Civil Suit with Civil 55.66 52,93 50.19
Judge, Alibag
(b) Service Tax

i) Service tax on “Cargo Handling Services” at Bhilai unit as ordered by Dy Commissioner Div-1, Bhilai, 381.01 370.88 359.81
pending before CESTAT,

Delhi , Period Aug 2002 to June 2003

ii) Service Tax on value of oxygen supplied free of cost by SAIL , Bokaro to FSNL as demanded by 48.93 46.74 44.55
Additional Commissioner,
Central Excise & Service Tax, Ranchi - IT for the period October 2010 to March 2015, Pending before
CESTAT
iii) Service Tax on “Business Auxiliary Services” at Bokaro unit as ordered by Commissioner Central Excise - - 827.95
and Customs, Ranchi,
pending before CESTAT, Kolkata. Sept 2004 to Feb 2005 and Feb 2008 to March 2010

iv) Service tax on “Business Auxiliary Services” at Burnpur unit as ordered by Assistant Comunissioner, B - 75.36
Central Excise , Asansol

pending before Tribunal & Commissioner (Appeal), Kolkata, Period April 2005 to Sept 2006

v) Service tax on “Cargo Handling Services” at Duburi unit Demanded by Commissioner, Central Excise, - Z 500.71

Bhubaneswar for the
period from May 2004 to March 2007, pending before Appellate Authorities (CESTAT), Kolkata

vi) Service Tax on “Business Auxiliary Service” at Durgapur Steel Plant for the period April'2008 to - - 794.15
May'2009, pending before
CESTAT, Kolkata and Commissioner (Appeal), Kolkata,

vii) Service Tax on “Cargo Handling Services” at Duburi unit as demanded by Commissioner, Bhubaneswar - - 272,70
for the period
April’2009 to March'2010 is pending before CESTAT, Kolkata.

viii) Service Tax on “Business Auxiliary Service” at Durgapur Unit as demanded by Commissioner, Central - - 281.10
Excise, Bolpur for the
period October 2009 to March 2010, is pending before CESTAT, Kolkata.

ix) Service tax on “Cargo Handling Services” at Duburi unit demanded by Joint Commissioner, Central - = 319.82
Excise, Bhubaneswar for
th period from April 2007 to March 2009, pending before CESTAT, Kolkata

(¢) Sales Tax and Other Taxes
i) For Sales Tax at Durgapur as demanded by West Bengal Sales Tax Department, pending before Sales Tax 2.94 2.94 2.94
Tribunal, Kolkata,
ii) For Goods and Service tax related litigation 198.01 - -
ii) For Penalty regarding registration of Vehicles with RTO, Vizag_ - 79.84 79.84/
|C. Outstanding Bank Guarantees 14.00 14.00 14.00
Total 1,168.68 1,420.72 4,454.30
40 Capital commitments:
Particulars As at Asat Asat
31 March 2025| 31 March 2024 1 April zoz3
Estimated amounts of contracts Wgﬂ{ewted on capital account and not provided for (net of 655.01 115.95 445.44
advances) R GRIFTIRNS
Total /NN N 655.01 115.95 445.44
o [ A A FE g i

Pred %}
c.0 * 1
BHILAI Ly .‘I
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44 Restatement adjustments summary

a) During the year, the Company adopted lease accounting including previous years. As a result, it restated the financial statements for the comparative
periods ending March 31, 2024, and April 1, 2023, recognized the lease liability along with the right-of-use asset for the land leased on December 29, 2021.

Additionally, during FY 2023-24, the company paid a security deposit to SAIL for its leased land, which has been recorded at its present value in the
financial statements, with a corresponding impact on the right-of-use (ROU) asset. As a result, the company has restated its financlal statements to reflect

this adjustment.

The related impact of lease and security deposit adjustment on Other equity, Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss is as given below:

Particulars

As at 1 April 2023

As at 31 March 2024

Impact of Restatement adjustment

Balance Sheet

Other equity

Right of use asset (net of accumulated depreciation)
Lease liabilities-Nan current

Lease liabilities-Current

Other financial asset

Provisions

Other current assets

Provision (current)

Statement of Profit and loss:

Other income

Depreciation and amortisation expense (ROU)
Finance cost (Interest on lease liability)
QOther expenses

(40.58)
469.05
310.05
246.27

(46.68)

(96.34)
472.62
303.05

7.00
(18.80)

(230.58)
(36.95)
(0.09)
16.32
30.93
(36.88)

b) During the current year, the Company restated the deferred tax calculations of previous years. As a result, it restated Its financial statements for the
comparative periods ending March 31, 2024, and April 1, 2023, recalculated deferred tax with corresponding impact on retained earning.

The related impact of deferred tax adjustment on Other equity, Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss Is as given below:

Particulars

As at 1 April 2023

As at 31 March 2024

Impact of Restatement adjustment

Balance Sheet
Other equity
Deferred Tax Asset
Statement of Profit and loss:
Other income
Deferred tax (additional deferred tax created)

(46.48)
(46.48)

11321
66.74

(113.21)

¢) During the current year, the Company restated the capital reserve and the amount, totaling Rs. 37.36 lakhs, has now been reclassified and transferred to
the general reserve. Consequently, the Company has restated its financial statements for the comparative period ending April 1, 2023. This reclassification

has no impact on deferred tax.

=
d) In addition, the Company ha €
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T
d-l?e‘-_ﬁl.s‘sssified balances wherever necessary to reflect their actual nature.
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(i) Reconciliation of balance sheet as at 31 March 2024

As at As at
31 March 2024 Regrouping Restatement 31 March 2024
(Audited) (Restated)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 8,116.96 - - 8,116.96
Right-of-use asset - 472.61 472.61
Capital work-in-progress - - . -
Other intangible assets 9.64 - . 9.64
Financial assets: - - - -
I. Other financial assets 45.34 2,180.00 (18.80) 2,206.54
Deferred tax assets (net) 905.76 - 66.74 972.50
Non-current tax assets (net) . 617.56 - 617.56
Other non-current assets 623.51 (617.56) - 5.95
Assets classified as held for sale 252.92 (252.92) - =
Total non-current assets (A) 9,954.13 1,927.08 520.55 12,401.76
Current assets
Inventories 537.68 - 537.68
Financial assets: - - -
i. Trade receivables 20,240.38 (4,275.05) - 15,965.33
il. Cash and cash equivalents 2,5653.62 (1,000.00) - 1,553.62
iil. Bank balances other than (il.) above 9,306.98 (1,180.00) - 8,126.98
iv. Other financial assets 617.43 7.00 - 624.43
Contract assets - 4,268.05 4,268.05
Other current assets 0985.97 - (230.58) 755.39
Assets classified as held for sale 30.33 252.92 - 283.25
Assets retired from active use 17.39 - - 17.39
Total current assets 34,289.78 (1,927.08) (230.58) 32,132.12
TOTAL ASSETS 44,243.91 - 289.97 44,533.88
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 3,200.00 - - 3,200.00
Other equity 22,578.66 - 16.88 22,595.54
25,778.66 - 16.88 25,795.54
Liabilities - " "
Non-current liabilities - - -
Financial liabilities - % -
Lease liabilities - - 303.05 303.056
Provisions 7,613.34 - 7,613.34
7.613.34 - 303.05 7,916.39
Current liabilities - £ ¥
Financial liabilities - - -
i. Lease llabilities - - 7.00 7.00
il. Trade payables z - - ~
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and sma 412.86 14.90 - 427.76
4,521.63 (175.44) - 4,346.19
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other
lii. Other financial liabilitles 2,176.66 160.54 - 2,337.20
Provisions 1,727.73 - (36.95) 1,690.78
Other current liabillties 1,979.14 - - 1,979.14
Liabilities directly associated with asset class 33.89 - - 33.89
i N 10,851.01 - (29.95) 10,821.96
44,243.91 - 289.98 44,533.89
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{ii) Reconciliation of balance sheet as at 1 April 2023

As at As at
1 April 2023 01 April 2023
(Audited) Regrouping Restatement (Restated)
ASSETS
MNon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 7.422.88 - - 7.422.88
Right-of-use asset - - 469.05 469.05
Capital work-in-progress B.18 - - B.18
Other intanglble assets 20,44 - - 20.44
Financial assets: - - - -
I. Other financial assets 26.18 7,640.00 - 7,666.18
Deferred tax assets (net) 721.79 - (46.48) 675.31
Non-current tax assets (net) - 1,599.53 - 1,599.53
Other non-current assets 1,605.84 (1,599.53) - 6.31
Assets classified as held for sale 224.41 (224.41) - -
Total non-current assets (A) 10,029.72 7,415.59 422.57 17,867.88
Current assets
Inventories 514.67 514.67
Financial assets: - - -
I. Trade receivables 12,968.29 (4,220.91) - 8,747.38
ii. Cash and cash equivalents 2,722.00 - - 2,722.00
iii. Bank balances other than (il.) above 15,632.67 (7,640.00) - 7,992.67
iv. Other financial assets 1,082.24 - - 1,082.24
Contract assets - 4,220.91 - 4,220.91
Other current assets 808.52 E - 808.52
Assets classified as held for sale 8.49 224.41 - 232.90
Assets retired from active use 32.14 - - 32.14
Total current assets 33,769.02 (7,415.59) - 26,353.43
TOTAL ASSETS 43,798.74 - 422.57 44,221.31
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 3,200.00 a < 3,200.00
Other equity 18,689.99 - (87.06) 18,602.93
21,889.99 - (87.06) 21,802.93
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities - - 310.04 310.04
Provisions 7,833.23 - B 7,833.23
7,833.23 - 310.04 8,143.27
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
I. Lease liabllities = - 246.27 246.27
ii. Trade payables - 2
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and sma 382.67 (200.60) - 182.07
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other 3,436.61 197.44 - 3,634.05
iii. Other financial liabilities 2,049.25 3.16 “ 2,062.41
Provisions 6,727.18 - (46.68) 6,680.50
Other current liabilities 1,474.87 - . 1,474.87
Liabilities directly associated with asset class 4.95 - - 4.95
= 14,075.53 0.00 (46.68) 14,028.85
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIAB ‘_‘_1%. 43,798.75 0.00 176.30 43,975.05
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(i) Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2024

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2024
(Audited) Regrouping Restatement (Restated)

Revenue from operations 43,461.01 - - 43,461.01
Other income 3,311.70 (1.03) 0.09 3,310.76
Total income 46,772.71 (1.03) 0.09 46,771.77
Expenses
Operational Expenses 6,307.70 - - 6,307.70
Employee benefits expense 11,201.51 - = 11,201.51
Finance costs - - 30.93 30.93
Depreciation and amortization expense 1,683.09 = 15.32 1,698.41
Other expenses 18,759.43 (1.03) (36.88) 18,721.52

37,951.73 (1.03) 9.37 37,960.07
Profit (loss) before tax 8,820.98 - (9.28) 8.811.70
Tax expense
-Current tax 2,512.58 - - 2,512.58
-Deferred tax (183.98) - (113.21) (297.19)
Profit (loss) for the year 6,492.38 - 103.93 6,596.31

Other comprehensive income (loss)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of defined benefit liability (58.40) - - (58.40)
Income tax relating to these items 14,70 - - 14.70
Other comprehensive income (loss) for (43.70) - - (43.70)
the vear. net of tax

Total comprehensive income (loss) for the 6,448.68 - 103.93 6,552.61
year
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

Segment reporting
Company is engaged in the business of scrap recovery and allied jobs in various steel plants in India, which is

the principal business activity of the company. However as per para 11 of Ind AS 108 i.e. "Operating segment", a
business segment should be identified as a reportable segment if its reported revenue, including both sales to
external customers and inter segment sales or transfer is 10 percent or mare of the combined revenue, internal
and external of all reporting segments.

Further as regard to geographical segment, the primary criteria as envisaged in the accounting standard are
being considered of which details are as follows:

a. Similarity of economic and political conditions.

b. Relationship between operations in different geographical areas.

c. Proximity of operations.

d. Special risk associated with operations in particular area.

e. Exchange control regulations.

f. Underlying currency risks.

Since the company is rendering services to units that are subject to same economical and political conditions
and are therefore exposed to same operational risks viz. exchange control regulations, underlying currency risks,
proximity of operations etc. Accordingly relationship between operation in different geographical areas does not
differ from each other and therefore is not relevant for the company or the management.

The company has three major customers out of which revenue of approximately Rs. (in lakhs) 33,156.95,
5,019.83 & 7,718.40 ( 31st March 2024 Rs (in lakhs) 31,534.21; 6,446.07; 5,480.73) are derived respectively
from each customer.

The current assets, loans and advances are goad and recoverable and are approximately of the values, if realized
in the ordinary course of business unless and to the extent stated otherwise in the accounts. Balances of trade
payables, trade receivables, loans and advances are subject to reconciliation and confirmation.

During the year ended March 31, 2025 the Company has not declared and paid any dividend. For the year ended
March 31, 2024 the company has declared and paid interim dividend of Rs. 1,280.00 lakhs i.e. 40% of paid-up
equity share capital to the shareholders of M/s MSTC (ceased to be holding company w.e.f 21.01.2025). The final
dividend for the year ended March 31, 2023 paid during the year ended March 31, 2024 was Rs. 1,280.00 Lakhs
to the shareholders of M/s MSTC (ceased to be holding company w.e.f 21.01.2025).

The land on which the plant and building of the company are situated at Rourkela, Burnpur, Bhilai, Bokaro,
Vizag, Durgapur, Salem, Nagarnar, Midhani are neither freehold nor leasehold. The company has acquired the
right of free use from landholders as a part of the service agreement., The company has however, acquired
leasehold land from SAIL-BSP on perpetual lease of 33 years w.e.f December 29, 2021 on which the Registered
office Building has been constructed.

The fair value of Assets classified as held for sale is more than the carrying amount of the asset.

The company has not traded or involved in Crypto or virtual currency during the year.

i '%s have been split and regrouped wherever necessary so as to correspond to current
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FSNL Private Limited (formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

49 The following are the analytical ratios for the year ended 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024:

Particulars Numerator Denominator For the year|For the year| % change Reasans**
ended/ As | ended/ As
at 31 March|at 31 March
2025 2024
Current ratio Current assets  |Current 3.30 2.97 11.26% .
(in times) liabilities
Debt equity ratio Total debt Total equity - - -| Not applicable as company does
(in times) not have any borrowing
Debt service coverage ratio (in|Earnings Debt service” - - -| Not applicable as company does
times) available for not have any borrowing
debt*
Return on equity (in % ) Profit for the Average 20.83% 27.57% -24.47% -
year shareholders'
equity
Inventory turnover ratio Cost of goods Average - - 0.00%|from service related to
sold inventory Processing of Scrap & other
items
Trade receivables turnover (in|Revenue from Average trade 3.50 3.52 -0.50% -
times) operations receivables
Trade payables turnover Purchase of Average trade 6.27 5.07 23.85% %
(in times) stock in trade payables
Net capital turnover ratio Revenue from  [Average working 2.05 2.60 -21.34% E
(in times) operations capital
Net profit margin (in %) Profit after tax  |Revenue from 13.72% 15.18% -9.61% -
aperations
Return on capital employed |Earnings before |Capital 26.72% 34.28% -22.06% -
(in %) interest and employed
Return on Investment Total income Average - - -|Company has not made any
from investment |investment for investment during the year and
the year in previous year

*Profit after tax + interest expense +depreciation & amortisation expense + exceptional items + loss/(gain) on sale of fixed assets)

“Interest + Principal repayments (excluding lease liabilities)

**Variance has been explained for any change in the ratio by more than 25% as compared to the ratio of previous year.
;".:'::\

S
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

50
U

(i)
(iii)
(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

Additional disclosures required by Schedule 11T

Details of benami property held

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

Borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current asset

The Company has not taken any loans/ borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current asset.

Willful defaulter

Company has not been declared Willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements

The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.

Utilization of borrowed funds and share premium

A. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the

understanding that the Intermediary shall:
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate

Beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

B. The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether

recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate

Beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

Undisclosed income
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that

has not been recorded in the books of account.

Details of crypto currency or virtual currency

The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the cuirent or previous year.

Valuation of property, plant and equipment including intangible asset

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or previous
year,

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies

There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

Utilization of borrowings availed from banks and financial institutions
The Company has not taken any loans/ borrowings from banks or financial institutions in the current or previous financial year.

Relationship with struck off Companies
The Company does not have any transactions or balances with the Companies whose name is struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Loans or advances to specified persons
The Company has not given loan or advances to specified person.

Previous years split up and regrouping
Figures of the previous years have been split up and regrouped wherever necessary so as to correspond to current year's figures.

Notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements,
This is the summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information referred to our report of even date.

For V.RAWAL & Co

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 011303N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
FSNL Private Limited (formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)

Ao dRoy

CA Payal Mittal ¢ E& P '_‘ bi]shan% Sumit Kumar Roy
Partner {0’)\( ) Company Secretary AGM (F&A) & CFO
Membership No: 474037 \* Membership No: A40900
UDIN : 25474037BOEQPJ5339
Place: Bhilai Place: Bhilai Place: Bhilai

Date: Date:

10 JUL 2025

2Bt 7
Toshihirg%jiﬁra{‘if ™

Chairman and Non- Executive Director
DIN: 10903855

Place: Bhilai
Date:

I
I}
Yukihiro E‘lﬁaée}'“
Executive Director

DIN: 10909033

Place: Bhilai
Date:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To

The Members of

FSNL PRIVATE LIMITED ( FORMERLY KNOWN AS FERRO SCRAP NIGAM LIMITED )
(CIN : U27102CT19?9FTC005468)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of FSNL PRIVATE LIMITED ( FORMERLY
KNOWN AS FERRO SCRAP NIGAM LIMITED ) (‘the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including the Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statement for
the year ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein
after referred to as “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information  and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2025, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act 2013 (" the Act’). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act and the Rules made there under, and we have
fuffilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole and informing our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon




The Company’s management & Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's
Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and
Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management & Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a frue and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
entity's ability to continue as a going concern , disclosing , as applicable, matter related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the entity or to
cease operations , or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the entity’s financial reposting process .
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

I ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive fo those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
)




0 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

0 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accou nting estimates and
related disclosures made by management and Board of Directors.

1 Conclude on the appropriateness of management's and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

U Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work: and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies ( Auditor's Report ) Order,2020 ( “ the Order *) , as amended , issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “
Annexure-A“ a statement of the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.




b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standard specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) Section 164(2) of Act , i.e. written representation from directors regarding disqualification of Directors not
applicable to Government Company ..

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the
Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2021, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations and the impact on its financial position in its Ind
AS Financial Statements — Refer Note No. 39 of the Financial Statements,

il. The Company did not have any long-term contracts, including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company.

iv. The management has represented that , to the best of its knowledge and belief , no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested ( either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or any kind
of funds)by the Company to or in any persons or entities including foreign entities ( “ Intermediaries * ) with the
understanding whether recorded in writing or otherwise , that the i ntermediary shall :
e directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
(Ultimate Beneficiaries *) by or on behalf of the company or
* provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of Ultimate Beneficiaries.

v. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been received
by the Company from any persons or entities including foreign entities ( “ Funding Parties ) with the
understanding whether recorded in writing or otherwise , that the intermediary shall :
e directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
(Ultimate Beneficiaries “) by or on behalf of the company or
* provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of Ultimate Beneficiaries




vi. Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (d) (i) and (d)
(ii) contain any material misstatement.

vil. The Dividend declared during the year by the company is in compliance with section 123 of the Companies
Act,2013.

viii. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using
accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company
with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 is applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2025,

Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting software for
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility however, the
same has not been operated/enabled throughout the year for all transactions recorded in the software.
Further, since the audit trail is not being maintained by the company, we are unable to comment on any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered.

Further, proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 is applicable from 1st April 2023,
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 on preservation of audit trail as
per statutory requirements for record retention is operative for current financial year , but no such record made
available to us for verification for the F.Y. 2023-24.

For VRAWAL & COMPANY .,
Chartered Accountants e
FRN : 011303N

g

Place:-DURG CA PAYAL MITTAL

Date: 10/07/2025 (Partner)
Membership No. 474037

UDIN: 254340 3+ ROEQPT 5334
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to
the Members of FSNL PRIVATE LIMITED ( FORMERLY KNOWN AS FERRO SCRAP NIGAM LIMITED ) of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us, by the Company and books of account
and record examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that ;

i. In respect of the Company's property, plant and equipment: right-of-use assets, intangible assets :
(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
property, plant and equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets,

(b) The Company has a regular program of verification to cover all the items of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets in a phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain property, plant and equipment were physically verified by the
management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

(c) The company is not having any owned immovable properly however lease tifle deeds of leased immovable properties
are held in the name of the company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment ( including right-of-use assets), intangible
assets during the year.

(e ) No proceedings have been initiated  during the year or pending against the company as at 31st March,2025 for
holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act,1988 and rules made there under.

ii. a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year, in our
opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate. As informed to us, any
discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were not noticed on such verification.

b) The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees (at any point of time
during the year), in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable to the company..

iii. The company has not made any investments, provided guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans , secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the
register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Consequently, the provisions of clauses 3(iil) (a), to
3(iii)(f) and (c) of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

iv The company has neither made any investment nor has it given any loans or provided guarantee or security and
therefore the relevant provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 ( “the Act’) are not applicable to the
Company , Accordingly , clause 3(iv) of the order is not applicable.

v. The Company has not accepted deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public. Accordingly
clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.




vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. Thus reporting under clause 3(vi) of the
order is not applicable to the Company,

vi. In respect of statutory dues:

(a) In our opinion, The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material
statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax,
Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examinations of the record of the
company, there are no statutory dues relating to Goods & Service Tax, Provident Fund, employees State Insurance,
Income tax, duty of Custom or Cess or other statutory dues, which have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute except the amount mentioned in Note No. 39 to the “Note on Accounts”,

Viii There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

Ix (a) The company did not have any loans or borrowings from any lender during the year, Hence reporting under clause
3(ix)(@) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(b) Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender;
(c) The company has not obtained any term loans during the year, Hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the order is

not applicable to the company.

(d) No funds raised on short term basis have been utilized for long term purposes;

(e) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures;

(f) The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures
or associate companies.

X. (a) The company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments).
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(x)(a) of the order are not applicable to the company and hence not commented
upon.

b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment

or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year,
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(x)(b) of the order are not applicable

Xi (a) No fraud by the company or any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported

during the year.
(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto
the date of this report.
(c) No whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the company.

Xii In our opinion, The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provision of clause 3 (xii) of the order is not
applicable to the company.

Xiii In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Ind AS Financial Statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

Xiv. (@) The Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of its
business.




(b) We have considered the report of internal auditor for the period under audit.

xv. The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected with its
directors. and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

xvi a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

b) There is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

xvil. The company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

Xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
altention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
company is incapable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

10. The There are no unspent amount to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act
within a period of six months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with second proviso to sub-section(5) of
section 135 of the said Act.

10i. The company does not have any amount remaining unspent under sub-section(5) of section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013, Accordingly Para 3 clause (10) (b) of the order is not applicable.

For V RAWAL & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 011303N

A

Place:-DURG CA PAYAL MITTAL

Date: 10/07/2025 (Partner) 3
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’I-S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 3(f) under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the
Members of FSNL PRIVATE LIMITED ( FORMERLY KNOWN AS FERRO SCRAP NIGAM LIMITED ) of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of FSNL PRIVATE LIMITED (FORMERLY
KNOWN AS FERRO SCRAP NIGAM LIMITED ) (‘the Company’) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s and Board of Director’s Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management and Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial

ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on
Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of interal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with references to Financial Statement
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial




reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial with references to Financial Statement

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according fo the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operaling effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For V RAWAL & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 011303N

S

-
Place:-DURG CA PAYAL MITTAL
Date: 10/07/2025 (Partner)
Membership No. 474037
UDIN : 35U43403%BOESPTE333




